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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRBEE

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Aurum
Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group”), it is my great pleasure to
report to the shareholders the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Trading of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
has been resumed on 28 February 2013. After the completion of
acquisition of KanHan Technologies Limited (“KanHan”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “KanHan Group”) on 31 December
2012, KanHan Group became the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. This was the first full financial year of inclusion of the
operating profit from the information technology (“IT”) solution
provider business, which generated additional revenue and profit
to the Group. For the year under review, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$14,278,000. Profit attributable to
the shareholders for the year was approximately HK4,863,000. The
Board did not recommend to pay any dividend for the year ended
31 December 2013.

As an IT solutions provider targeting Hong Kong and the markets
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), our Group mainly
engaged in developing and marketing of the patented server based
technology and the provision of communications software platform
and software related services. Our flagship product, HanWEB
Publishing Server along with its HanVoice/HanPHONE IVR speech
extension provide the most effective and efficient way to bridge the
cultural and dialectal boundary among Chinese around the world.

PROSPECT

The popularity of smart phones provides a diversified communication
channel on message broadcast and marketing promotion. The
increasing use of smart phones and increasing locations of internet
access through either Wi-Fi or data services have resulted in an
internet access friendly environment and thus lead to the immense
demand of mobile application which in turn created desirable
opportunities to us.
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Communications become much more convenient with the help
of better and innovative technologies. Integrated with internet
platforms, creative designs and experienced programming skills, we
will continue to develop and upgrade our products and services
with a generic growth of the business in the existing market. Such
development and future operations of the Group would continue to
broaden our income sources in order to improve the performance
and maximize the returns of shareholders as a whole.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to give my sincere gratitude to my fellow Directors and all the staff
who have contributed their time, efforts and supports to revive the
Group's business operations.

Lau Man Tak
Chairman

19 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEREWLR DN

RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded a total turnover
from continuing operations of approximately HK$14,278,000. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$4,863,000, as compared to loss of approximately HK$5,845,000
in the same financial year of 2012. The profit was mainly attributable
to (i) the inclusion of the first full financial year of operating
profit from the information technology solution provider business
acquired on 31 December 2012; and (ii) the changes in fair value of
consideration payable for business combination.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HKS$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

The acquisition of KanHan Technologies Limited (“KanHan”) and
its subsidiary (together, “KanHan Group”) had been completed on
31 December 2012 (the “Acquisition”), KanHan Group became the
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

Under the sales and purchase agreement of the Acquisition, the 1st
vendor and the guarantor have irrevocably warranted and guaranteed
that the 2012 EBITDA of KanHan Group would not be less than
HK$5.5 million (the “2012 Guaranteed Amount”); while the 2013
EBITDA of KanHan Group would not be less than the HK$8.5 million
(the “2013 Guaranteed Amount”). The 2012 Guaranteed Amount has
been met and no adjustment on the 1st promissory note was made.
Details of the Acquisition were set out in the Company's circular
dated 10 December 2012 (the “Circular”) and announcements dated
31 December 2012 and 22 July 2013.

The 2013 EBITDA of the KanHan Group was HK$5,553,100, which
represented a shortfall of HK$2,946,900 (the “2013 Shortfall”) to the
2013 Guaranteed Amount. The 2013 Shortfall will be payable by the
1st Vendor and the guarantor in accordance with the terms of the
sales and purchase agreement by setting off against the remaining
outstanding balance of the consideration of HK$9,000,000. After
adjustment of the consideration of Acquisition as a result of the
2013 Shortfall, the Group shall be obliged to pay to the 1st Vendor
of HK$6,053,100 for the remaining outstanding balance of the
consideration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ¢ BBt R D4

The Board believed that the 2013 Shortfall mainly attributes to (i)
the delay in acceptance of projects by customers and extension of
deployment date due to increasing complexity and clients’ request
for changing requirements in the development process which in
turn delay the revenue recognition; and (i) the increase in staff
cost. Details of the adjustment are set out in the note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements and the announcement of the
Company dated 19 March 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group mainly focused on
developing and marketing of the patented server based technology
and the provision of communications software platform and software
related services with primary focus in the government industry sector.
The products and services can mainly divided into five categories,
namely, (i) HanPHONE supported Client Management Infrastructure;
(i) KanHan Client Management Infrastructure; (iii) HanWEB; (iv)
solutions to expand business through creative promotions; and (v)
voice system service to the under-privileged groups.

Being a market leader in providing the HanPHONE branded telephony
solutions, KanHan has been providing a one-stop shop for most
telecom related needs including equipment supplies and maintenance
services since 2003. In 2013, KanHan moved on establishing a new
telecom and customer care division manned by certified professionals,
ready to deliver world-class solutions and maintenance service on
renowned Private Automatic Branch Exchange (PABX) equipment and
voice recorder system including the Alcatel-Lucent lines of PABX and
NICE lines of voice recording solution. KanHan’s PABX related telecom
experience and expertise were further accredited by Electrical &
Mechanical Services Department (EMSD) in admitting KanHan into her
departmental contractor list for PABX supply to HKSAR government
departments in October 2013.

We intend to continue taking efforts in developing and upgrading
our products and solutions with a generic growth of the business
in order to broaden our income sources. The Group will continue
to deploy appropriate operation strategies to meet the challenges
posted by the competitive market to improve the performance and
maximize the returns of shareholders as a whole.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ¢ EEEBHRUMR O

Financial Resource and Liquidity

On 27 February 2013, the Company completed the open offer and
resulted in gross proceeds of HK$60,000,000. The proceeds from
the open offer will be used as intended. Details of the open offer
were set out in the Company’s prospectus and announcement dated
1 February 2013 and 26 February 2013 respectively. At 31 December
2013, the Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$44,284,000 (31 December 2012: HK$1,869,000). In addition, a
loan facility of up to HK$40,000,000 was granted by the controlling
shareholder, Prime Precision Holdings Limited. As at 31 December
2013, principal amount of approximately HK$11,528,000 (31
December 2012: HK$5,000,000) had been drawn. This shareholder’s
loan was unsecured, interest free and not repayable before April
2014. As at date of this report, this shareholder’s loan had been fully
report. Most of the cash and bank balances and the borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2013, total assets of the Group were approximately
HK$77,523,000 (31 December 2012: HK$34,459,000) whereas total
liabilities were approximately HK$21,739,000 (31 December 2012:
HK$42,782,000). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as
total liabilities over total assets, was 28.0% (31 December 2012:
124.2%) and the current ratio, calculated as current assets over
current liabilities, was 2.4 (31 December 2012: 0.3). The Directors
will continue to take measures to further improve the liquidity and
gearing position of the Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Directors consider that the Group had no material foreign
exchange exposure.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

At 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any substantial pledge
of assets and contingent liabilities.

Material Acquisition, Disposal and Significant Investment

The Group did not have any material acquisition, disposal and
significant investment for the period ended 31 December 2013.

Events after end of Reporting Period

Details of events after end of reporting period are set out in the
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the quality of disclosure,
transparency and accountability to shareholders for the sake of
maximizing returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2013 except for the deviation from code provision A.4.1
which is explained in the following relevant paragraph. Below are
the major corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
with specific reference to the CG Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the Company,
overseeing as well as the supervision of its business, approval of
strategic plans and monitoring the Company’s performance. The
Board delegates the day-to-day operations to the executive directors
and senior management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised six Directors, of
which two were executive Directors, Mr. Lau Man Tak and Mr. Mo
Wai Ming, Lawrence; one non-executive Director, Mr. Chan Tik Yuen;
and three were independent non-executive Directors (the “INED"),
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Chan Wai Fat and Mr. Chui Kwong
Kau. There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst the Directors.

Throughout the year 2013 and up to date of this report, the
Company has complied with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate
for discharging their duties as Directors in the best interests of
the Company and that the current board size is adequate for its
present operations. Each of the Directors keeps abreast of his
responsibilities as the Director and of the conduct, business activities
and development of the Company.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is
of the view that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¢ N ERW|E

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad hoc basis %%@ﬁk%iiﬂmﬁgﬁlﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁ%jF
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial THAgE Uil RAEEBERBUR
performance of the Group. There were twelve board meetings held EERMBRE T —=FAHBT+
during the year 2013. ZREEEEE -

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held during the BRIZFEERFART2EFTT RN
year: o

Attendance/eligible to attend
BB EEREERE

Board meetlng General meeting

ExEeR BRERKXE

Executive Directors

BTES

Mr. Lau Man Tak (Chairman) 12/12 2/2
B EEE(EE)

Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence (Chief Executive Officer) 12/12 2/2
TR E L (TR AEE)

Non-Executive Director

FHTES

Mr. Chan Tik Yuen (appointed on 26 February 2013) 10/10 171
REREER-FE—=ZF_HA -+ NAEZF)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHUTES

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth 12/12 1/2
EEERE
Mr. Chan Wai Fat 12/12 2/2
BREZEE
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau 12/12 2/2
ENEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¢ N ERI|E

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Lau Man Tak whereas the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence.
Their roles are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities. The
Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness in all aspects of its role for setting its agenda and taking
into account any matters proposed by other directors for inclusion in
the agenda. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Group’s business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

On 26 February 2013, the newly appointed non-executive Director,
Mr. Chan Tik Yuen, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from 26
February 2013, unless terminated by not less than one month’s notice
in writing served by either party on the other.

Pursuant to A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific terms, subject to re-election.

For the period from 1 January 2013 to 28 February 2013, all the
existing INEDs were not appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement and re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and retirement by rotation and re-election at
least once every three years at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association (the "Articles”). On 1 March 2013, the terms
of appointment of the INEDs were revised. Each of the INEDs has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from 1 March 2013, unless terminated
by not less than one month’s notice in writing served by either party
on the other. The code provision A.4.1 has complied with thereafter.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a proper
corporate governance structure of the Company. It is primarily
responsible for setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing the risks of the Group. Under the Board,
there are currently three committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist the
Board in supervising certain functions of the senior management.
Nomination Committee assists the Board in nominating candidates
for directorship, reviewing the size and composition of the Board and
making recommendation to the Board on appointment of directors.
Each of the Committees is established with defined written terms
of reference which are available on the Company’s website and the
GEM website.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and
structure for remuneration of Directors and senior management and
determining the specific remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the market terms,
individual experience, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the
Company and its subsidiaries in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The amounts paid
to each Director for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management Profiles” in this annual report for
the year by band is set out as follow:
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As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three INEDs, namely Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Chan Wai Fat
and Mr. Chui Kwong Kau. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Chi Chi
Hung, Kenneth.

The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least once
a year. One meeting was held during the financial year ended 31
December 2013. The attendance of each member is set out as
follows:
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Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIYEHTES

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman)
FEEREFRE)

Mr. Chan Wai Fat

PRIZZE k&

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

BN E

Summary of works

During the year 2013 and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration packages
of the all the Directors and the senior management and made
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
newly appointed non-executive Director in accordance with the
Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential
candidates for directorship, reviewing the nomination of directors
and making recommendations to the Board on such appointments.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprised
three INEDs, namely Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Chan Wai Fat
and Mr. Chui Kwong Kau. The Committee is chaired by the INED,
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth.
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The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year
for the review of the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board. In addition, the Nomination
Committee also meets as it is required to consider nomination of
related matters. Two meetings were held during the financial year.
The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

REZBEFEASFHRI BT —RER
Mgz ecs/kE RRRAKER
WEE - MBREEBIE) - 1o RBERE
ETNFTEFRTEH USEEREH
EH REZEERAVMRFESRIT-R
GH o BKEZHEBREIMT :

Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
SEREERH
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman) 2/2
FEBAEEERE)
Mr. Chan Wai Fat 2/2
PREZEE
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau 2/2
EHIREE

Summary of works

During the year 2013 and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee reviewed the board diversity policy,
the structure, size and composition of the Board and made
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s strategy and also reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the newly
appointed non-executive Director in accordance with the Nomination
Committee’s written terms of reference. Also, the Nomination
Committee recommended the revision of the terms of appointment
of the INEDs for three years commencing from 1 March 2013 for the
Board'’s approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 1 September 2013. A summary of this policy, together
with the measureable objectives set for implementing this Policy, and
the progress made towards achieving those objectives are disclosed
as below.
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Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognized and embraced the benefits of having a
diverse Board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity
Policy aimed to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a numbers of measurable aspects including
gender, age, ethnicity, knowledge and length of services. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regards for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board's composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six directors.
Three of them are INEDs, and thereby to promote critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of age, length
of services, professional background and skills.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy
to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved
the Board Diversity Policy.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible to evaluate the overall
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
frameworks, to review the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and other financial reporting matters and
ensure the completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial
statements, to monitor compliance with statutory and listing
requirements and to oversee the relationship with the external
auditors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. At least one member has
an appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Audit Committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and
practices but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the
GEM Listing Rules and the legal requirements in the review of the
Company’s quarterly, interim and annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditor, executive Directors
and senior executives are invited to attend the meetings, if required.
Each of the Audit Committee members has unrestricted access to
the Group’s external auditor and the management.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprised three
INEDs, namely Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Chan Wai Fat and
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau. The Audit Committee is chaired by the Mr.
Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth.

The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet at least four times a year.
Five meetings were held during the financial year. The attendance of
each member is set out as follows:
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Attendance/
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
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Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman) 5/5
FEBAEEERE)
Mr. Chan Wai Fat 5/5
PREEZEE
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau 5/5
EHIREE
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Summary of works

During the year 2013 and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee reviewed the quarterly, interim and annual results; made
recommendations to the Board on the terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and reviewed the system of internal control and its
other duties in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written terms
of reference.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out in the terms of reference equivalent to code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the year, the policies of the
corporate governance of the Company were reviewed by the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for each financial period to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the
Company is set out in the section “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
of this annual report.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of an external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. The remuneration in respect of audit service for the
year ended 31 December 2013 provided by Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Limited was HK$416,000. No non-audit services were provided by
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited and its affiliates.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems. The internal control system includes safeguard of
the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets. It has been an
important duty of the Board to conduct a review of internal control
to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the system of the Group
annually or at any time necessary. The review covers all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, as
well as risk management functions.

For the year under review, the Board has through the Audit
Committee, reviewed and reached the conclusion that the Group’s
internal control system was in place and effective.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’'s responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing
and professional development for directors will be arranged at the
expenses of the Company where necessary. For the year 2013 and up
to date of this report, each of Mr. Lau Man Tak, Mr. Mo Wai Ming,
Lawrence, Mr. Chan Tik Yuen, Mr. Chan Wai Fat, Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth and Mr. Chui Kwong Kau has participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars and/or studying
materials relevant to director’s duties and responsibility. Their training
records have been provided to the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms. Wong Chi Yan, is responsible to the
Board for ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and
the Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. She
is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised
of the relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments relating to the Group and facilitating the induction and
professional development of directors. During the year under review,
Ms. Wong has attended relevant professional seminars to update his
skills and knowledge. She met the training requirement set out in
Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company had
adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard of
dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company also had made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities,
which has been complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage
is reviewed on an annual basis.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS POLICY

During the year, the related party transactions, if any, are periodically
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses two-way communication channels to account to
shareholders and investors for the performance of the Company. All
the shareholders have received not less than 20 clear business days’
notice of annual general meeting at which Directors are available
to answer questions on the business. Extensive information about
the Group’s activities is provided in its annual report, interim report
and quarterly reports which are sent to shareholders and investors.
The Company’s announcements, press releases and publications are
published and are also available on the GEM website and on the
Company’s website at www.aurumpacific.com.hk.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there has not been any
change in the Company’s constitutional documents. A consolidated
version of the Company’s constitutional documents is available on
the Company’s website and the GEM website.
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SHAREHOLDERS RIGHT

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit,
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (the
“Extraordinary General Meeting”). The Extraordinary General
Meeting shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
secretary for the purpose of requiring an Extraordinary General
Meeting to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

convene

Send Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company either by
email at administrator@aurumpacific.com.hk or by post to the
Company’s Hong Kong head office at 22/F, Hua Fu Commercial
Building, 111 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong. Shareholders
can also make enquiries with the Board directly at the general
meetings.

Make proposals at General Meetings

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the Articles (as amended from time to time), the
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an extraordinary general meeting follow
the procedures as set out above.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
EERSREEAEGBN

As at date of report, the Directors and senior management profiles
are set out as below:

EXECUTIVES DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Man Tak (“Mr. Lau”), age 44, has been appointed as an
executive Director and the chairman of the Company with effect from
1 June 2012. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor degree in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has more than 15 years
of experience in corporate finance, accounting and auditing. He is
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute and admitted as a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Directors in August 2012. Mr. Lau is an independent non-executive
director of AMCO United Holdings Limited (stock code: 630), Climax
International Company Limited (stock code: 439), Kingston Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 1031), Kong Sun Holdings Limited (stock
code: 295) and Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 444).
Mr. Lau was also an executive director and chief financial officer of
China Sandi Holdings Limited (stock code: 910) from April 2010 to
September 2012 and an executive director of Warderly International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 607) from December 2007 to January
2010.

Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence (“Mr. Mo"), aged 54, has been
appointed as an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer
with effect from 31 December 2012. He is also the director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Mo founded his first company
CompuFont Limited in 1989 to develop Asian language technologies
for display and printing, which were later licensed by Microsoft
for use in its nascent Chinese version of Windows 3.0 product for
personal computers. CompuFont Limited was in 1991 acquired by a
Taiwan based software technology company, Dynalab Inc. which was
engaged in the development and sales of solutions on local language
computing for Chinese, Japanese and Korean (CJK) for electronic
and internet publishing, where Mr. Mo continued his service as
the managing director of Hong Kong branch of Dynalab Inc. and
various management roles until 1999 when he left to found KanHan
Technologies Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Mo is an expert in CJK language font technology for PC and
professional publishing market. Mr. Mo holds a degree in computer
science from the University of Toronto, Canada and has over 30 years
experience in technology development, selling and business startup in
the information technology industry and over 10 years experience in
the development and sales of solutions on local language computing
for Asian languages and for electronic and internet publishing.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan Tik Yuen (“Mr. Chan”), aged 40, has been appointed
as a non-executive Director with effect from 26 February 2013. He
is currently the chief executive officer of a technology firm called
Pulse Mediatech Limited (“PMT") and is responsible for the overall
strategy planning, business and product development. Mr. Chan holds
a Bachelor’s degree of Science and Business Administration from the
University of North Carolina (Charlotte) in the United Stated. He has
extensive experience in the research and development of industrial
automation systems, online advertising and content distribution
solutions and has received numerous awards for his achievement.
Under his leadership, PMT was accredited and granted awards by
both local and international organizations namely 2011 Hong Kong
ICT Awards — Best Business Grand Award and Gold Award, the
2011 Asia Pacific ICT Alliance Awards and the 2012 World Summit
Awards — mobile content. In 2008, Mr. Chan is also awarded the
12th Innovative Entrepreneur Award in his own capacity. Mr. Chan
is also a holder of US Patents in the area of textile machinery.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (“Mr. Chi”), aged 45, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 8 March 2010. Mr. Chi
has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial control
area. He holds a Bachelor of Accountancy Degree from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chi is
currently an executive director of each of Guocang Group Limited
(stock code: 559), China Sandi Holdings Limited (stock code: 910),
M Dream Inworld Limited (stock code: 8100) and Ceneric (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 542). He is also an independent non-executive
director of each of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group
Limited (stock code: 8085), Noble Century Investment Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2322), China Natural Investment Company
Limited (stock code: 8250), Perfect Shape (PRC) Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1830) and L'sea Resources International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 195). He was an independent non-executive director of
Interchina Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 202) from October
2011 to August 2012.
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Mr. Chan Wai Fat (“Mr. Chan"), aged 46, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 14 July 2008.
Mr. Chan is currently a Senior Vice President of a securities house in
Hong Kong. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree of commerce from
The University of Western Australia and a master degree of business
administration from Deakin University, Australia. He has years of
experience in compliance, accounting and financial management in
securities industry and has worked for international accounting firms
and listed company in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified
Practising Accountant of CPA Australia.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (“Mr. Chui”), aged 47, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 17 March
2010. Mr. Chui has over 15 years’ experiences in accounting and
auditing fields, including over 10 years accounting and auditing
experience in other public listed companies. Mr. Chui is currently an
executive in other public listed companies. Mr. Chui is currently an
executive director of each of China Energy Development Holdings
Limited (stock code: 228) and Hong Kong Life Sciences and
Technologies Group Limited (stock code: 8085).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Man Ting (“Ms. Wong"”), aged 38, is the business
development director of KanHan. With a marketing background, she
joined KanHan in May 2005 and the Group upon the completion of
the Acquisition and now has the overall responsibility of the sales and
marketing of KanHan’s products. Ms. Wong has a bachelor degree
in marketing from University of Science and Technology, Hong Kong.

Mr. Mak Ka Ming, (“Mr. Mak"), aged 35, is the manager, Project
Management Department of the KanHan. He graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, Bachelor of Manufacturing Engineering.
Mr. Mak joined KanHan in Oct 2013 having over 10 years’ IT and
Project Management experience, and now responsible for product
development and service delivery.

Ms. Wong Chi Yan (“Ms. Wong"”), aged 32, is the Company
Secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in Accounting from Hong Kong Baptist
University. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She has extensive experiences in
auditing and accounting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Directors hereby present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

RESUMPTION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange has
resumed trading on 28 February 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the major
customers and suppliers respectively during the financial year under
review is as follows:

EFEUREAKEHE_T—=F1=
A=t - RLFEZFBRREELEAH
BWEK -

MEEE
ARARHER=F-—=F=A=+N\A
MEEE -

TEXRK
ERARAZEIEEBARALRIE
HEARZ BB HNGA MK RERM
17 ©

TREFRHER
EHAEEREESREEHHREEE
EFRHEE I ERE R LR
WERKELRBEIMT

Percentage of the Group’s total

HAREELE2ESL
Sales Purchases
HE "
The largest customer KABP 15%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREFER 38%
The largest supplier & A ER 25%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EEEET 62%

During the year ended 31 December 2013, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholder of the Company (who to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group and the state of the Group’s and the
Company’s affairs for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 119.

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to owners of the Company was HK$30,554,000
(2012: HK$Nil)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 on the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital during the financial year
are set out in note 28(b) on the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The changes of Directors during the financial year and up to the date
of this report are as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Man Tak (Chairman)
Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Tik Yuen (appointed on 26 February 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wai Fat
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

In accordance with Article 108 (A), one-third of the Directors shall
retire at each annual general meeting from office by rotation. Further,
according to Article 112, any director appointed by the Directors to
fill a casual vacancy in the Company under that article shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting and shall
then be eligible for re-election at the meeting.
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Accordingly, in accordance with Article 108(A), Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth and Mr. Chan Wai Fat shall retire from office by rotation at
the annual general meeting. Being eligible, each of Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth and Mr. Chan Wai Fat will offer himself for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors are set in the section “Directors
and Senior Management Profiles” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTS

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Articles and the GEM Listing Rules.

None of the existing Executive Directors has entered into any service
contract with the Company nor appointed for a fixed term for the
year ended 31 December 2013. The non-executive Director, and each
of the INEDs has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 26 February 2013 and
1 March 2013 respectively, unless terminated by not less than one
month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (i) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity

Esns 514

Mr. Lau Man Tak
R ELEE

Corporate interest (Note)

EE R (A i)

Note: The interest in the shares of Mr. Lau Man Tak is held through Prime Precision
Holdings Limited (“Prime Precision”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, in which the entire issued share capital is beneficially and
ultimately owned by Mr. Lau Man Tak. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Man
Tak is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Prime Precision.
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Hat: BINEAEDEBREBR ZBES MK
37 Z Prime Precision Holdings Limited ([Prime
Precision]) ¥ & % & IR 17 # %5 - M Prime
Precision Z & #B B B 1T IR AR Ty B8 B LB L 4
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE
THEIR INTERESTS

Substantial Shareholders

To the best knowledge of Directors, as at 31 December 2013, the
following persons, other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or who were expected to be directly or indirectly interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group:

FTERRRHEMARBEES 2
AL

FERR

BEZMARN RZT—=F+=-A=+
—B > TIAL(BEEHARRETETERA
BBRINRBOIBBRODHEERIES
HREBERPIEXVEE2R35 B AKX
ARARRBIRBRARE ZERIAR
X T8 5 S B 4R Bk R R A T R R TR
ABERTEREBEMKBERRZRERK
ELEREZEMBARBRANEES% A £
2t

Approximate
percentage of

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Number of shares shareholding
TERRBEE LB g4 R4 8B BORERS L
(Note 1)
(Bt at1)
Prime Precision Beneficial owner (Note 2) 357,483,700 (L) 71.50%
EmBEBEAMNGZ2)
Mr. Lau Man Tak Corporate interest (Note 2) 357,483,700 (L) 71.50%
B fEEE EB (A iE2)
Notes: Bt -
1. The letter “L” denotes the entity’s interests in the Shares. 1. LIFEZERBRKRO ZER -
2. The interest in the shares of Mr. Lau Man Tak is held through Prime 2. 2| X 7% % 4 T35 B Prime Precision$3 B % %

Precision, in which the entire issued share capital is beneficially and
ultimately owned by Mr. Lau Man Tak. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Man
Tak is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Prime Precision.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
other interests or short positions of any other person (other than
the Directors and chief executives and the substantial shareholders
of the Company) in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO as at 31 December 2013.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
annual general meeting regarding the termination of the old share
option scheme (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) and adopted a new
share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) whereby the
Board may grant share options to employees, directors, suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisers or any person, at its discretion, for
the primary purpose to recognize and motivate their contributions to
the Group. The New Share Option Scheme is valid for a period of
10 years commencing from 8 May 2013. Details of the New Share
Option Scheme were set out in the circular of the Company dated
27 March 2013.

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to date of this report,
the Company had no outstanding options under the Old Share Option
Scheme or the New Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance
to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, in which the Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”), or law of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

LOANS FROM A SHAREHOLDER

Particulars of loans from a shareholder of the Group as at 31
December 2013 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five years is set out on page 120 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors and management and shareholders of the
Company (within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules) has an
interest in any business which competes or may compete with the
business in which the Group is engaged.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the CG Code contained in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2013 except for the deviation from code provision A.4.1. Details of
the CG Code adopted by the Company are set out in the section
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report. The Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company has good corporate governance practices.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established audit committee with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review,
in draft form, the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year
report, quarterly report and to provide advice and comments thereon
to the Board. The audit committee is also responsible for reviewing
and supervising the financial reporting process and internal control of
the Group. The audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr.
Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Chan Wai Fat and Mr. Chui Kwong Kau.
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth is the chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and discussed with the Board the
internal controls and financial reporting matters, including a review
of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs a written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Board considers all of
the INEDs are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has complied with the
public float requirement under Rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year 2013, REF Financial Press Limited (the “Printer”)
provided printing services to the Company in the aggregate
amount of approximately HK$284,000. Mr. Lau Man Tak is an
indirect substantial shareholder and a non-executive director of the
Printer. Mr. Lau Man Tak is also the controlling shareholder and
an executive Director of the Company, and therefore the provision
of printing services by the Printer to the Company constitute a
connected transaction pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The connected transactions with the Printer were on normal
commercial terms and were exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Rule 20.33 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that all other related
party transactions disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements did not fall under the definition of connected transactions
in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required to
comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ¢ E=EEH%&

AUDITOR

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited were first appointed as auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 upon the resignation
of BDO Limited.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EVENTS AFTER END OF REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after end of reporting period are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Man Tak
Chairman

19 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

’\5?

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG | K i s

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
REPEEEARDF

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Aurum
Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 119, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ¢ B U EHEMREES

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group's profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 19 March 2014

Andrew David Ross
Practising certificate number P01183
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SeETHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE-ZT—=F+-_A=+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A 7T 71 7R)

2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b &t FTHER T
Continuing operations HEKEXER
Turnover = 4 14,278 —
Cost of sales 84 & B AR (2,656) — i
Gross profit £ F 11,622 =
Other revenue H A U a5 6 159 2
Changes in fair value of consideration ¥4 OfEN K E
payable for business combination N EEE 30 2,778 —
Administrative expenses TERHAX (4,678) (6,402)
Research and development expenses A 3 f & (2,392) —
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAZ (2172) —
Profit/(loss) from operations EE R (B 1R) 5,317 (6,400)
Finance costs A& KA 7(a) (641) (515)
Profit/(loss) before taxation B %A= A (5 18) 7 4,676 (6,915)
Income tax Ffr 15 Bt 8 358 —
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing 5 48 48 & ¥ & £ &
operations wm A (& 18) 5,034 (6,915)
Discontinued operation ERIEREEK
(Loss)/profit for the year from ERIEREEBFE
discontinued operation (& 18), % F 9 (171) 1,070
Profit/(loss) for the year AATREEAELRFEE
attributable to owners of wmR (B E)
the Company 10 4,863 (5,845) ‘
i
Other comprehensive loss for HtEE2EEER
the year |
Items that may be classified HZRgen M EBR 2
subsequently to profit or loss: B/H:
— Exchange differences on translation — 2 & & Sh i B A &)
of financial statements of an W mE 2ER
overseas subsidiary, net of nil tax ERKHMBRET
] (74) —
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AT EHE A ELE
for the year attributable to ExEWRE(BR)
owners of the Company W 4,789 (5,845)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME * #ZR& 2 H W &= &

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-T—=F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T35 7R)

2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET——%F
Notes HK cents HK cents
b &t AL il
(Restated)
(&)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF (FE)
From continuing and discontinued BHERDRIELEER
operations
— Basic and diluted — AR #E 13 1.05 (2.30)
From continuing operations FEREEB
— Basic and diluted — EARREE 13 1.09 (2.72)
From discontinued operation ERIE&EFER
— Basic and diluted — EARREE 13 (0.04) 0.42
The notes on pages 43 to 119 form part of the consolidated financial FEBENIENNERAGEMBIRE 2
statements. HEKER S ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B R | R

At 31 December 2013

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R-—E—=%+-_A=+—H

(PAFE T3 7R)

2013 2012
—E—=F ==
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K7 it FET FET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz RERZE 14 448 243
Intangible assets mEE 15 5,217 4,778
Goodwill [EES 16 20,236 20,236
Deferred tax assets BEERIEE E 25 1,660 1,402
27,561 26,659
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 18 81 69
Trade and other receivables JrE LA B 3 K EAth B U SR 19 5,597 5,862
Cash and cash equivalents HekIReEED 20 44,284 1,869
49,962 7,800
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables JE 5 BR 3k K2 EL b FE AT 3R 21 962 4,514
Financial assistance from government ¥ 81 X #2 B 22 477 322
Deferred income IR 3E U A 2,074 1,756
Short term borrowing REEE 23 — 6,554
Loans from a shareholder —HZRRZER 24 11,339 —
Consideration payable for business ¥BAMENNRE
combination 30 6,052 14,841
20,904 27,987
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(AE)
#E 29,058 (20,187)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZAEBERABEE 56,619 6,472
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION e
R-ZE—=F+_A=+—H
(LA T35 7R)

At 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

e MBRR ‘K

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
JioN=3 FET FH& T
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Financial assistance from government X fF 81 B 4% B) 22 438 669
Loans from a shareholder —BREZER 24 — 4,640
Deferred tax liabilities BEEREAE 25 397 497
Consideration payable for business XBEENKRE
combination 30 — 8,989
835 14,795
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE (BB ZRHE 55,784 (8,323)
Capital and reserves EAXRHEE
Share capital &N 28(b) 10,000 2,000
Reserves RG] 45,784 (10,323)
TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIT) AAEEE AEMN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF B (E 4 25
THE COMPANY 55,784 (8,323)
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 EEeR-_TNOF=AT+NABERE
March 2014. REF)ZE o

Lau Man Tak
Bl &=

Director

EF

The notes on pages 43 to 119 form part of the consolidated financial
statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2013

B %5 iR O R

R-—E—=%+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A 7T 71 7R)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iok=a TR F& T
Non-current asset kREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR Z&E 17 — —
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables JrE LAt BR R K E At FE U R 19 19,089 6,208
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBLEZEED 20 37,330 1,077
56,419 7,285
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JE AT BR R B2 B Ath, FE AT K 21 656 4,060
Short term borrowing HHEE 23 — 6,554
Loans from a shareholder — BB R ZER 24 11,339 —
11,995 10,614
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (AE)
FE 44,424 (3,329)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZAERABERS 44,424 (3,329)
Non-current liability FkRBEME
Loans from a shareholder — BB RZER 24 — 4,640
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE /(AR FE 44,424 (7,969)
Capital and reserves EXR#E 28(a)
Share capital & 7 28(b) 10,000 2,000
Reserves &t 1 34,424 (9,969)
TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIT) R (B4 A5 44,424 (7,969)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19
March 2014.

EFeR 2 HE=ATtNAAHLAERK
RETI % o

Lau Man Tak
8 E

Director

EF

The notes on pages 43 to 119 form part of the consolidated financial
statements.

Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence
REH
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRERSFX

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE-T—=F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 7R)

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADRBEBAERE
Share Share Capital Capital Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve surplus reserve losses Total
BA ROEE BXFE BXEBER ELARR ESdF ] Mt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FTExT FTiExT TER TERT FER FET FET
(note (note (note (note

28(0)0)  28(0)i)  28(c)i)  28(c)iv))
(B (B (B (B
28(0)()  28(c)i))  28(c)ii))  28(c)(iv)

Balance at 1 January 2012 R=—F--%—-F—-HZ
b33 2,000 30,224 1,569 15,090 — (53,436) (4,553)

Loss and total comprehensive loss for 518 & & 2 F 12

the year Fek = = = = = (5,845) (5,845)
Capital contribution by a shareholder — &k & 2 % 8 &K

in the form of interest-free loans EE — — 466 — — — 466
Waiver of amount due to a REEN—BRE

shareholder Z I = = = 445 = = 445
Waiver of loans from a shareholder %% — &R &R 2 &%

(note 24) (P 52 24) = = = 1,164 = = 1,164

Balance at 31 December 2012 R-EB-=F

and 1 January 2013 +t=ZA=+-BR
—E-=Z%-A-H
Z i 2,000 30,224 2,035 16,699 — (59,281) (8,323)
Profit for the year FZ i A = = = = = 4,863 4,863
Other comprehensive loss Hth2HEEE = = = = (74) — (74)
Total comprehensive income FEXAKZERE
for the year — — — — (74) 4,863 4,789
Capital contribution by a shareholder — &R 2 % 8 & &
in the form of interest-free loans EE = = 392 = = = 392
Issue of shares B 1n 17
(Note 28(b)(iii)) (Ff 5 28(b)Gii)) 8,000 50,926 — — = = 58,926
Balance at 31 December 2013 R=-B-=
+=A=t+-—A
Z i 10,000 81,150 2,427 16,699 (74) (54,418) 55,784
The notes on pages 43 to 119 form part of the consolidated financial FRRENIENWERARGEMBRE 2
statements. R ER D o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE-ZT—=F+-_A=+—HLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAFE T3 7R)

2013 2012
—E—=F —_F—=
Notes HK$000 HK$000
b it FET FAT
Operating activities RETE
Profit/(loss) before taxation: B AR (EiE):
— From continuing operations — REREXB 4,676 (6,915)
— From discontinued operation — BRIEEEER (171) 1,070
Adjustments for: o R
— Changes in fair value of — XBEHENKE
consideration payable for ZRANFEEE
business combination (2,778) ==
— Bank interest income — RITFBWA 6 (157) (2)
— Finance costs — BEKAK 7(a) 641 515
— Amortisation of intangible assets — — &2 & & # 4 7(c) 603 —
— Depreciation of property, — WX BEREZE
plant and equipment mE 7(c) 187 77
— Write-off of trade receivables — P 8K FE U BR K 153 —
— Write-off of property, — WEYWE - BER
plant and equipment Bl — 4
— Waiver of amount due to — R — [ R
a related company NGl § | — (1,125)
— Effect of foreign exchange rate — EXEHTEFH
changes, net (76) —
Operating profit/(loss) before EEESEHAZ
working capital changes mERA(FBE) 3,078 (6,376)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEGEM, R (12) 70
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JE U5 BR R R EL A FE WK
other receivables A (&) 112 (754)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and JE {-F BR SR 2 EL M FE A 3R
other payables Ok 4) /18 hn (3.552) 2,870
Increase in deferred income i 3E U A S8 A0 318 —
Net cash used in RETHMARSFHE
operating activities (56) (4,190)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT ¢ HZRE8HREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-T—=F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T35 7R)

42

2013 2012
—E—-=F -
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &t FTET F# T
Investing activities REFED
Interest received B F B 157 2
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HEWE - KENRE
plant and equipment Ffr 1S 5k 18 26 =
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE  BEK&E
plant and equipment XA RIE (418) —
Additions to intangible assets REEBFEEE (1,042) —
Net cash outflow from WEKHBAR ZRE
acquisition of subsidiaries it O RE 30 (15,000) (3,803)
Net cash used in investing activities R&EFEFTHRESESR (16,277) (3,801)
Financing activities b & 5E B
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMDAEHIE 28(b)(iii) 58,926 —
Repayment of financial assistance 18 38 AT B B 4% B
from government (76) —
Repayment of loans from a shareholder f8i& — &M R 2 B X (104) —
New loans from a shareholder KE—BREFER — 5,000
Net cash generated from METBMERS
financing activities FE 58,746 5,000
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBEELEEY
and cash equivalents B CRD)FE 42,413 (2,991)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—BAZEE&R
at 1 January BEZEEY 1,869 4,860
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExgEHTE
changes 2 —
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—RA=+—H2
at 31 December RERAESEEY 20 44,284 1,869

The notes on pages 43 to 119 form part of the consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LA78 7241 7R)

COMPANY INFORMATION

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Company has its registered
office at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands, and its principal place
of business at 22/F, Hua Fu Commercial Building, 111 Queen'’s
Road West, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousand of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000") unless
otherwise stated. Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") is the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

At 31 December 2013, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Company to be
Prime Precision Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.
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FRA R ([522 Pr1) Bl 2R (TR 2R 1)
By R NN s o 1 g
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Z Prime Precision Holdings Limited ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4348 Bt # &K

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

(BAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that contingent consideration payable for
business combination are stated at its fair value (see note
2(d)).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o #R& B ImEM T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

(BAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet
the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 (Revised
2008), Business combinations, are recognised at their fair
values, except that:

—  deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12, Income taxes, and HKAS 19, Employee
benefits, respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to the
replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s
share-based payment awards are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2, Share-based payment;
and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations, are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis
is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and considered as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on
bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37,
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group'’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control) and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

(BAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Business combinations (Continued)

Changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity before the acquisition date are
reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains
control over the acquiree.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non- controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(i)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(i)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years
Computers and other equipment 3 to 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of fixed assets are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)). Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see note 2(i)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT

(BAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date when
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Development costs 3 years
Technical know-how 5 years
Programming codes 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Operating lease charges

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets

(i)

()

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

—  significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of trade and other receivables
(Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade receivables directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— intangible assets;
—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available
for use, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

54

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ERSHEEXE)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) BEERMEGE)
(ii)  Impairment of other assets (Continued) (i) BmEEHE (&)
—  Calculation of recoverable amount —  FrEAEEEE
The recoverable amount of an asset is BEAKRESES
the greater of its fair value less costs of ~F AR &K
disposal and value in use. In assessing value ALK REE
in use, the estimated future cash flows are MERZREHE °
discounted to their present value using a R EEREE
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current B - 2RREE R
market assessments of the time value of isE EEEEE
money and the risks specific to the asset. BEREERTER

Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measureable),
or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories, which represent merchandises for resale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4348 Bt # &K

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

(BAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

(0

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(i)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition.

Financial assistance from government

The Innovation and Technology Fund (“ITF”) of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region government has
provided financial assistance to the Group to assist in a
specific product development. The funding is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable to ITF when revenue is
generated from the specific product. The amount repaid,
if any, will be in stages and calculated with reference to
the revenue generated and received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Deferred income

Deferred income represents contractual billings/amount
due in excess of recognised revenue resulting from
services yet to be rendered or in respect of the unexpired
terms of the relevant contracts/arrangements, or for
which the applicable revenue recognition criteria are
not yet satisfied. Revenue is recognised and deferred
income is released to the statement of comprehensive
income when the relevant services are rendered or on
a time proportion basis over the terms of the relevant
contracts/arrangements, or when the applicable revenue
recognition criteria are satisfied.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(ii)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in share-based payment
reserve within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

(BAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless
it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o #R& B ImEM T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

60

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EARSTHE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(’ Income tax (Continued) (n FEHE)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

= in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,

if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

(i)  Provision of communication software
platform includes:

(1) Sales of licensed software, which are
recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered
to customers and titles has been passed,
provided that the group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

62

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EARSTHE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(t) Revenue recognition (Continued) t) WEEFEE)
(i)  Provision of communication software () REBEAENMFFEE

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT

platform includes: (Continued)

(2) Software maintenance service income
received or receivable from customers
when the maintenance service contracts
are entered into, which is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the
maintenance service contract;

(3)  Software rental and subscription income
from software application and website
development, which are recognised when
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Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantive period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BAETTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Discontinued operation (Continued)

(x)

64 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « REFREBERE LT

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the income
statement, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7041 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(x) Related parties (Continued)

(ii)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(6)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4348 Bt # &K

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT

(BAETTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 cycle

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7041 7R)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present
separately the items of other comprehensive income that would
be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions
are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit
or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive income in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in these
financial statements has been modified accordingly.

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated
and separate financial statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation
— Special purpose entities. It introduces a single control model
to determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by
focusing on whether the entity has power over the investee,
exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and the ability to use its power to affect the
amount of those returns. The adoption does not change any
of the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of
its involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.

The adoption of other revisions, amendments and new HKFRSs
has had no effect on the Group’s financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new or revised HKFRS that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note
35).

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the sales value of goods and services
supplied to customers from the provision of communications
software platform.
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WERERAERBASAZEE RN
REgEE UARERENZEZRS
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it B 88 R 75 AT 2= 2R E0 ({71 75 R 42
T HEEAER °

RMEMET RIS HREE
AMAEBYBEREMELE -

7R 5 B30 4 4R P A 3 AT A R
RERRFTRIEIET BB BHE
£ A (R F 3E35) -

BERH
BEEEEBEGBRRETA
FET SR R R 8

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 « 43R 2013

67



68

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker, which
are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has two (2012: two) reportable segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different business
strategies. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

Continuing operations

—  Communications software platform — developing and
marketing of patented server based technology and
the provision of communications software platform and
software related services.

Discontinued operation

—  Custom-made solutions — developing and implementing
custom-made solutions which are specifically designed
and developed for the specific needs and requirements
of a particular customer and providing technical support
services.

Corporate revenue and expenses are not allocated to the
operating segments as they are not included in the measure
of the segments’ result that is used by the chief operating
decision-maker for assessment of segment performance.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7041 7R)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 5 SHEBE(E)
(@) Business segment (@) ¥BoHE

Continuing operations  Discontinued operation
BRLERY BRIEBEXY

Communications

software platform Custom-made solutions Total
BRE4TA HES 9 @t %
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 '

“g-=f —T--f ZB-=f T ZB-=Zf —T-_f
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FhER T FET THT TER FAT

Revenue from external customers RBESNFEP 2 Uiz 14,278 — — 97 14,278 97

Reportable segment profit/(loss) Al $f % 5 i Fl /

BE) 5,130 = (17) 1,070 4,959 1,070
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 ft/ & & # & 603 = - = 603 =
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% - BE MR
and equipment e 179 = - 70 179 70
Write-off of trade receivables &M BR 7l 38 - = 153 = 153 =
Income tax credit FEREA 358 = - = 358 —
Reportable segment assets IRESEEAE 18,650 11,291 203 489 18,853 11,780
Reportable segment liabilites ~ ATHRESHEAE (3,801) (3,697) - = (3,801) (3,697)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 5 S2EBREE)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) THEDENRZE  BE -
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities EEREBEZHE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Revenue I =
Reportable segment revenue Al ¥ & o U &= 14,278 97
Segment revenue from discontinued B & IFE&E XKD
operation W z= — (97)
Consolidated turnover from continuing #4858 & £ 7% ~
operations e EER 14,278 =
Profit for the year FERE
Reportable segment profit from ARG D EARFEL
continuing operations & 1% A 5,130 —
Segment (loss)/profit from discontinued T AR IF A& 2 48
operation (&), & Fl (171) 1,070
Unallocated corporate income and RAOBEEFERAR
expenses X (96) (6,915)
Consolidated profit/(loss) A (EE) 4,863 (5,845)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets from A ¥R E D AR AL
continuing operations EEBCEE 18,650 11,291
Segment assets from discontinued BERIEREER 2
operation DEEE 203 489
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEFEEE 58,670 22,679
Consolidated total assets REBEERE 77,523 34,459
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities from A E D EAFE
continuing operations KEEB 2 BE 3,801 3,697
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEEEEE 17,938 39,085
Consolidated total liabilities meBERAH 21,739 42,782

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(b)

()

Reconciliation of reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

The unallocated corporate income and expenses mainly
include changes in fair value of consideration payable
for business combination, staff costs and legal and
professional fees of head office. The unallocated
corporate assets and liabilities mainly include goodwill,
prepayments and cash and cash equivalents of head
office, short term borrowing, loans from a shareholder
and consideration payable for business combination.

Geographical information and major
customers

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the assets, in case of property,
plant and equipment, and the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in case of intangible assets
and goodwill.

(PAFE T3 7R)

5 SE®HREE)

(b)

()

ARG D HE - B

EEREBBZHKR(E

ADERERRARFAXTES
EEBAHENRERFEZ
8 BIRARBRERZ
FEREERER c AOBELE
BENRBEBEAZIERERE
BRERANRARREER
ReHEY  HHBER - XA
—EBRRERREB S HEN
RE-

HwEENKEEEF

TRETI A R G) A& B KBS
REPZBAR()EEEZY)
X BELRE BREER
BE(EEFRBEE]ME
WEZEM - HEFRBEE
PAE 30 [ 12 & 7 BB IR P 3 B
A% - B RREmMS)
LA B & 8 P AE s B (A &
EXEEMS)ED -

Revenue from external Specified non-current

customers assets
REIABEFZW & EERBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f - ZB-=Ff ==
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T FHET FH& T
Hong Kong BB 14,246 97 25,878 25,237
Mainland China R A b 32 — 23 20
14,278 97 25,901 25,257

RBANEGEFEEBME &K
BEAEBEATERPZREA
2,213,000 L (=& — = :
ZHEL) BAEERADE
2B EIS% (ZE——F:
T %) o

For the communications software platform business,
revenue from the Group’s largest customer amounted to
HK$2,213,000 (2012: HK$Nil), being 15% (2012: Nil%)
of the Group’s total revenue from this segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 5

() Geographical information and major
customers (Continued)
For the custom-made solutions business, revenue from
the Group’s largest customer amounted to HK$Nil (2012:
HK$97,000), being Nil% (2012: 100%) of the Group's
total revenue from this segment.

DERE(E)

(0 HWEERREERF
(#&)
METRBRFTREBME * K
BEAEBEARATERZREB
TH T (ZE——F :97,000/%8
T0) ' (R AR ERAD 8 2 Bk
250% (ZZF——4F :100%) °

(@) Finance costs:

6 OTHER REVENUE 6 Hftlzm
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHIT
Continuing operations FEREER
Bank interest income RITA B A 157 2
Sundry income FMIEMA 2 —
159 2
7 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 7 BBAEFN(&FE)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BEBRTSEN (R 2k (GTA)
(crediting): =

@ BERA:

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$000 HK$'000
T T
Continuing operations HEKSEXER
Interest expense on financial WIEERFEFTA
liabilities not at fair value through BmrzomaE
profit or loss MERX
— Interest on short term borrowing — % HE & F &2 78 391
— Imputed interest on interest-free ~— —ZBREEEEK
loans from a shareholder ZIEER B 563 124
641 515
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(b)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 7 BRBLEIER(&E)(E)
(CONTINUED)
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) (note 11): by EIXANEREFEZEZH)
F11)
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FAT
Continuing operations FEREXER
Salaries, wages and Fe ITERHM
other benefits & H 6,993 859
Contributions to defined & 7€ 5% R K 5T &
contribution retirement plan K 295 14
7,288 873
Other items: (0 HfIEAE :
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$000 HK$'000
FTHER FABT
Continuing operations BEKSEXER
Auditor’s remuneration % EAD B &
— Provision for the year — RNFEEREE 416 452
— Over-provision in respect — EFEBERE
of prior year — (3)
Acquisition-related costs for business & 6 2 I EE
combination DN — 1,918
Amortisation of intangible assets B & B 603 —
Depreciation of property, plant and E =
equipment e 187 7
Operating lease charges: LERD L
minimum lease payments i K78 40 3R 18
— property rentals —MEMEE 183 216
Professional fees for resumption of BRIREEEZFHE
trading == — 1,835
Write-off of property, plant and WEE - WE &
equipment & — 4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

mE BRI
(PAFE T3 7R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 7R)

8 INCOME TAX RELATING TO CONTINUING 8 HERKZXKIBBHAESB

OPERATIONS
(@)  Taxation in the consolidated statement of comprehensive (@ HeazEk=mKIBIEIE:
income represents:
2013 2012
—E—-=F T ——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx T T
Deferred tax I B E
Origination and reversal of A e RO R
temporary differences Z8 358 =
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been HREBETREFELESE
made as the Group companies comprising continuing B2 ARIRNEALEBEEE
operations has either tax losses brought forward in JE SR i N 2 A5 B 7 TH 5 48 -
excess of the assessable profits for the year or do not SEEMEHMNEBREH 2
have any estimated assessable profit subject to Hong HETRERBUEN - M mEE
Kong Profits Tax during the year (2012: HK$Nil). BEENEH(CE——F: T8
JT) °
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman BIEHSHES R EBE X
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is SHRAREG - AEEDA
not subject to any income tax in the respective tax TR R EERBFTE
jurisdictions. B o
No provision for Enterprise Income Tax of the PRC has FR R 1E AR B A 1 AR S B B A
been made as the subsidiary incorporated in the PRC AIRAFEEHFHHREHIEE
has estimated tax losses for the year. B At B XS
Ve B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INCOME TAX RELATING TO CONTINUING 8
OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting profit/

(loss) at applicable tax rates:

mE BRI
(PAFE T3 7R)

RERCEXBHEBRE

Bi ()

() BiBELEGEN(BE)
BEAREHE:

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$000
TERT FAT
Profit/(loss) before taxation from RECEEB IR
continuing operations Al i #) (& 18) 4,676 (6,915)
Notional tax charge/(credit) B & AT A (B 18)
on profit/(loss) before taxation, mBaEHENR
calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ (# %) - & 5l 5t
rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) HEBMNEHRE
16.5% (ZZF —=
F 1 16.5%) 772 (1,140)
Tax effect of non-deductible A A 2
expenses wa 122 788
Tax effect of non-taxable BARRBA 2B
income R (486) —
Tax effect of unused tax losses iw R B SR R B) A A 1%
not recognised BRZEETE 419 352
Tax effect of temporary differences = K i 58 R B = 5 2
not recognised 15 % & (33) —
Tax effect of cumulative tax losses R i AR FE R EFT
previously not recognised BEEBZHETE (1,152) —
Actual tax credit ERTEEK R (358) —
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 1 January 2013, the directors abandoned the custom-made

solutions business.

(Loss)/profit and cash flows for the period from 1 January
2013 (date of abandonment) to 31 December 2013 from the

discontinued operation were as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=
(A% T 7R)

BRI RS> (6
18),/ %R
R=ZF—=%F—H—H8 ' EFME:]
DUER R RETS ©

R-Z—=F—A-H(HREXKA
MEE-_FT—=F+-HA=1+—H
LB ZEREREXHK 2B
B) A RBRERINEMT

2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE& T
Turnover EERE — 97
Cost of sales 4 & R AR — (70)
Gross profit EF — 27
Other net income H At F U = — 1,125
Administrative expenses TE R X (171) (82)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT(EE), &R (171) 1,070
Income tax Fr 5 %t — —
(Loss)/profit for the year from BRIEREET
discontinued operation and ZERATEEA
attributable to owners of the EBEFEE
Company (F518) % 7 (171) 1,070
Cash flows from discontinued BRIEREXK S
operation: HeERE:
Operating activities KRS (133) 55
Net cash (outflows)/inflows BHe(GRE)  RAFHE (133) 55
AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED REFEEEERATR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7041 7R)

10 PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO 10 225 MR R EALEF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (B #8)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company includes a NARHEAAELZHN(GE)8
loss of HK$6,925,000 (2012: HK$6,065,000) which has been & —166,925,0008 T Z BB (ZF—
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. — 4 :6,065,000% 7T) - ERARQ A

WK EIE

11 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 1M EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing B IRAIZ R TR B KRB B QR
Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance plEGIGHEBE2ESHES AT :
is as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2013  E-F—=FF+=-H=1—H
IHFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits in scheme
fees kind contributions Total
e 2R
EzHe BEWR & BIRGHEIHR 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FTER THER FER
Executive directors HBITES
Lau Man Tak 2z — — — —
Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence N — 300 9 309
Non-executive director FHTES
Chan Tik Yuen RaR(R=2—=
(appointed on 26 February 2013) ZRAZT BEZE) - 84 - 84
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Chan Wai Fat PR 2% 120 — — 120 _
Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth M 100 - - 100 _
Chui Kwong Kau BRI 100 - - 100
i
320 384 9 713
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

78 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

(BAETTHIR)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

REMBERME

1M1 EEMS(E)

E-Z-"H+-A=+-—H

IEFE
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’  allowances and scheme
fees benefits in kind contributions Total
e RER
Xk EYME R EIHR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAT FET
Executive directors HITES
Lau Man Tak Bz = = = =
Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence & H — — — -
Cheung Yu Ping RFEFE(R=ZZ—Z=F
(resigned on 1 June 2012) NA—BEE) = — — —
Lee Ah Sang ETE(R_F—=F
(resigned on 31 December 2012) +-A=+—HET) = = — —
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Chan Wai Fat Bz 120 = = 120
Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FE 90 = = 90
Chui Kwong Kau B IR 90 = = 90
300 — — 300

No emoluments were paid to the Company’s directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the year (2012: HK$Nil).

The directors had not waived any emoluments during the year

(2012: HK$NIl).

RETEREEERAF

AEE  AABYEAESIMNEM

Be (=

=

——% BT AR

R AN S 9IIPNZ JE 1S
ZEBEHFERBRME -

EN - BEEDEBRTCANE (=T
Y L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

mEMBmRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none
(2012: four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 11. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
remaining five (2012: one) individuals are as follows:

AEBRELZSF

12 BEFMAL

(PAFE T3 7R)

AL E+ILE

BF(CT——F:UR) HBEH
BRMENESR - THRAEB A
T(Z2——F:—R)zMeBEmWM

T~
2013 2012
—F-=F —FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FH& T
Salaries and other emoluments HekHEMME 1,967 559
Retirement scheme contributions RARET S 5K 72 14
2,039 573
The emoluments of the remaining five (2012: one) individuals BTREEZ(CE——F: — 255

with the highest emoluments are within the following band:

MIEEEALZMEN FIATEHE:

2013 2012

—E—=F —ET——4F

No. of No. of

employees employees

EBEAH BB AR

HK$Nil-HK$1,000,000 =% 7L 21,000,000 7T 5 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BAETTHIR)

13 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic earnings/(loss) per share

(a)

(b)

(1)

(i)

(iii)

From continuing and discontinued
operations

The calculation is based on the profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$4,863,000 (2012: loss of HK$5,845,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 461,598,922 (2012 (restated): 254,098,361) in
issue during the year.

From continuing operations

The calculation is based on profit for the year from
continuing operations attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$5,034,000 (2012 (restated):
loss of HK$6,915,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 461,598,922 (2012
(restated): 254,098,361) in issue during the year.

From discontinued operation

The calculation is based on loss for the year from
the discontinued operation attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$171,000 (2012 (restated):
profit of HK$1,070,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 461,598,922 (2012
(restated): 254,098,361) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
2013 and 2012 above has been adjusted for the open
offer which was completed on 27 February 2013 (note
28 (b)(iii)).

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012 is the same as the basic
earnings/(loss) per share as there were no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT

REMB R

13 BREFN (FBE)

(a)

(b)

SREAXRA(FE)
() KERERCHUEE

(i)

(iii)

Ey s
RNEEGRENEF
BREDIRARRHER
A FE 15 & 714,863,000
BLT(ZE——F: 18
5,845,000/ 7t) & F A
461,598,922/% B & 17
Tk (ZE—=—F(F
%) : 254,098,3610%)
INHEFH EEE -

BREXBHN BB
TR QR B N B
BERKEEBZFE
it F15,034,00058 7T (=
T——F(F¥) :EB#E
6,915,0007%8 7T) & F A
461,598,922/% B # 17
EER(CZE——F(&F
%) : 254,098,3610%)
INEEFEH EEE -

KEHEAKIAZFEET
BREXRBAN BB
TR A RNR A A JE
EERIEKEEER2F
& &5 18171,00058 Tt (=
T—ZF(FH) & F
1,070,0007% JT) & F A
461,598,922/% & % 17
ETER(-CZE——F(&F
%) : 254,098,3610%)
mEFHEEE -

MR- =FR-B——F

%

B D Z NEFHHD

M_E—=F_A=-++tHRE
B A B B & (M 5E28(b)iii)
EH A -

BREERF(BHR)

R B (A VE S B BT
TER BE-_T-=FR=
T——F+-A=+—HILF
ENGREERT(KR) 8
FREARF/(BR)HER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7041 7R)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 NE BRERRXRE

Computers
Leasehold Furniture and and other
improvements fixtures equipment Total
B R
HEMEEE HKAR#E Hit R % @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET FET FTET
The Group AEH
Cost AR A
At 1 January 2012 R-—ZE——%—F—H = 3 329 332
Additions through business combination ~ EBEHKA HARE
(note 30) (P £30) 23 55 154 232
Write-off i 85 — 3) (21) (24)
At 31 December 2012 R-T——F
and 1 January 2013 +ZA=+—-HBR
—T—=—A—H 23 55 462 540
Exchange adjustments SN 38 B — — 2 2
Additions NE 13 50 355 418
Disposals & — (29) () (31)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=
+=—A=+—H 36 76 817 929
Accumulated depreciation Rt e
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZE——F—HF—H — 3 237 240
Charge for the year REE MK = — 77 77
Eliminated on write-off P 35 B 3 85 — 3) (17) (20)
At 31 December 2012 ==t
and 1 January 2013 TZA=+—-HR
—ZE—=%—A—8 — — 297 297
Exchange adjustments SNEE 3 B — — 2 2
Charge for the year REF MR 20 24 143 187
Eliminated on disposals A H 5 BRF T 8 — (5) — (5)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=ZA=+-—H 20 19 442 481
Carrying amount BRE &
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=—A=+—H 16 57 375 448
At 31 December 2012 RZTE—ZF
+=—A=+—H 23 55 165 243
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 7R)

82

2 5
15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 BFE&EE
Development Technical Programming
costs know-how codes Total
BEAAE bk BAREB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FTET
The Group rE®E
Cost oS
Additions through business combination EBEHKAHRE
(note 30), at 31 December 2012 and (Bt 5£30)
1 January 2013 W-ZZE——%+-A
=+—HK
—Z—=%—A—8 1,767 1,023 1,988 4,778
Additions nNE 1,042 — — 1,042
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=F
+=—A=+—H 2,809 1,023 1,988 5,820
Accumulated amortisation Rt @y
At 31 December 2012 R-Z——4&
and 1 January 2013 +TZA=+—-HK
—T—=
Charge for the year AREEZ B = 205 398 603
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=F
+=A=+-—-A8 = 205 398 603
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=A=+—8 2,809 818 1,590 5,217
At 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF
+=A=+—8 1,767 1,023 1,988 4,778

The development costs represent expenditure incurred for
developing electronic software products that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(g).

There is no amortisation charge for development costs
capitalised in the year as the intangible assets are not yet
available for use at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$Nil).

The amortisation charges for technical knowhow and
programming codes for the year are included in “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT

BRNAEREEFRMHERME
ErRAx ERRAXEREEFR
R (E R L 2(0) HER -

FABEE AR AR KA H
X ARZEFEER-T—=
FT-_A=+—BHARAHHCE
——F:FEIT)

F P BT 0 38 K A 2 AR B B 1 3
XEFAKREZERBERANTE
Pz e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7041 7R)

16 GOODWILL 16 BE
HK$000
TA& T
The Group rEH
Cost and carrying amount BRAREREE
Arising on acquisition of =Rl g
subsidiaries (note 30), bS8~ =) (B 5£30) -
at 31 December 2012, —E——F+-_A=+—H"
1 January 2013 and —E—=F—H-HK
31 December 2013 —T—=%+=-HA=+—H 20,236

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGUs") identified according to country of operation and
operating segment as follows:

HEMECREELEEMZR
(ERE
BEAREASBREGENER
RREEDBHRN 2RO EEBN
(MReEEBMD  FEOT:

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET T
Communications software platform ARG E
— Hong Kong — B 20,236 20,236

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3.0% (2012: 3.0%) which
is consistent with the forecast included in industry reports.
The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the business in which the CGUs operate.
The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 23.2%
(2012: 20.1%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the communications software platform
segment.

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill
in accordance with HKAS 36. Based on the assessment result,
the directors are of the opinion that there are no indications
that the carrying value of the goodwill may be impaired.

ReELBEMZAIRESEIRER
BEZATEETE - %ZSTEHIRIE
EEEECHIETEE  FREE
FEHHANESREEAET - A
FROBSHRETIERGHTMET
H1g R EK30% (ZF— 4 :3.0%)
EH - B{TEERE AR TER 3K o
FiiERZERRTNBEREELSE
AT EEBEZRBIFHEER -
BWEREIIIE23.2% (ZE——4:
201%) 2 FT B KT - FERZI
R AR A - I = BRI A
FaoBEAEBZEERR -

EZCREB B S ERE36HE
BmEshmE- - REFHEER
EERA/ AUBPRBTIHEZR
EE/ERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17

84 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED e

(BAETTHIR)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

BETHBRERMFE
17 REBRAREIZKRE
2013 2012
—E—=£ —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiET

The Company
Unlisted shares, at cost
— HK$25
(2012: HK$18)

ZNYNE

A ETBAD - AR

— 257 7T

—T——F 188 7T)

Particulars of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 were as

follows:

Particulars of

Country of incorporation issued and paid Proportion of effective Principal
Name of company and operation up capital  ownership interest  activity
= AL R BETR
DEER EERERAR BERAFE BEREFEESHH FEXEH
Direct Indirect
HE GEES
Corporate Model Limited the British Virgin Islands us$1 100% — Investment holding
RERAHE 1% REZER
Pearlica Technologies Limited the British Virgin Islands us$1 100% — Inactive (2012: Provision of
I ER AR AR HKBELHES 1%L custom-made solutions)
WEER(ZT—ZF - 248
RIBBATR)
Sky Castle Limited (note 1) (Pif #£1) the British Virgin Islands US$1 100% — Inactive
RERAHE E 1 & % 7
Aurum Pacific Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% — Administration
BAEEERAA EH 17T THER
Forever Trend Development Limited Hong Kong N/A = — N/A (2012: Inactive)
(note 2) &5 (2012: HK$1) (2012: TER(ZE——%F:
KEBRBBRAR (HE2) TiE A 100%) I % 7)
(Em====
1B 7T)
KanHan (note 3) Hong Kong HK$363,636 = 100% Investment holding
FE (M 5E3) BB 363,636/ 7T and provision of
communications software
platform
REZRREEREA
HHTA
KanHan Technologies China Limited the PRC HK$1,000,000 — 100% Provision of communications
(notes 3 and 4) il 1,000,000 7T software platform
BMEER AR DR (B E35%4) REHEBARETA
REREEEARAD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7041 7R)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17 RERAR2RE (&)
(CONTINUED)

Notes: P & -

1. Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2013. il RBE_ZF—=#F+_A=t—ALt

FENREML

2. Dissolved on 15 November 2013. 2. R=F—=F+—A+HhBHEHK-
3. Acquired on 31 December 2012 (see note 30). 3. R-ZE——F+=-—A=+—RHKkER
Hi 5£30) ©
4. The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official 4. RXELEHRL2EZ HIXEWRE
name of the entity is in Chinese. BEHEH-
INVENTORIES 18 B
2013 2012
—E-=F —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
The Group rEH
Merchandise goods 7 o 81 69
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 FE U BR R H i FE WL K
The Group The Company
rEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—F-=F T —F =B-=% T
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T4 T FERT TA& T
Trade receivables JiE I BR 3R 4,948 4,586 — —
Amounts due from subsidiaries J& 4 i /B A 7 7k 18 — — 19,029 5,150
Deposits and prepayments HEDSSEENES 619 1,247 60 1,058
Other receivables E b & YT 5K 30 29 — —
5,597 5,862 19,089 6,208
All trade and other receivables, apart from certain deposits of B %8 5140,0008 T (=& ——F :
HK$140,000 (2012: HK$3,000) are expected to be recovered 3,0008 ) 2 & TIREIN - FIBEW
or recognised as expenses within one year. BEARHEMEWS - AR —F

M E SRS e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ©
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BAETTHIR)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

The amounts due from subsidiaries (net of accumulated
impairment losses of HK$7,909,000 (2012: HK$3,244,000)) are

(a)

(b)

86 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED e

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net

REMBERME

19 FE UL BR AR R H Ath BB WK

(#&)
JEUH B AR RN RE R E
&5 87,909,000 Tt (=& — = F:

3,244,000 70)) A ERKH - £ B B
I EEE B o

(a)

AR 24T
KRB SR AERE - YR
R A% % = B H N A0 B R AR 1

of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: Bz RERDITAT
2013 2012
E2—=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Within 1 month SR —1{E A 2,968 3,165
1 to 3 months —E@AE=M@A 1,304 887
3 to 6 months =@EA=ENEA 509 317
6 to 12 months NERAZET={EA 148 45
Over 12 months +=-@ AN L 19 172
4,948 4,586

Trade receivables are due within 30 days (2012: 30 days)
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group's
credit policy are set out in note 29(a).

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade debtors directly (see note 2(i)(i)).

During the vyear, impairment loss of HK$153,000
(2012: HK$Nil) was directly written off against trade
receivables.

RETEREEERAF

JE U BR X i P 2 A EA#E 5130
(ZZE——%:308)RNFIH -
AEEEERRZEZFER
i 5E29(a) ©

(b) FE U BR R E

JE U BR R 2 R fE /S 1B 1 R
IR - EAKREEAKD
Z R AR e R SERIRR SN -
ZBERT - BEBEEERNE
Ust Bl K0 (R P R 2()(0)

REA 153,000 T (—ZT —
—FEEET)MNREBER
B 7 JRE U BR T 8E o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7041 7R)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 ERERARKEMEWRR
(CONTINUED) (&)
() Trade receivables that are not impaired () FRIF{EEWERR

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are
as follows:

VEBBRARBRA/BMELZ
FEW AR R 2 R AT AT

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —F—=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Neither past due nor impaired = B slOR B 2,968 3,165

Less than 1 month past due 1 B P {E A 952 774

1 to 3 months past due w1 HR1 = 31E A 727 238
More than 3 but less than %60 A iR s 31 A

6 months past due 18 >R 6{E A 274 194
More than 6 but less than #0 B iEB i e 1E A

12 months past due B R12ME A 8 43

More than 12 months past due 0 B R 12 1E A 19 172

1,980 1,421

4,948 4,586

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
trading record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

458 760 HA Sl R (B 2 B YUK B 5T 1
BRARSLHEZEFERA -

B HE &R E 2 & KRR E
ETEIUEFPER ZEEP
EAREEERFEELE - R
BRELR  EEERSBA
FhA% F AR IELIRERE - R
HAREEKFLEERED
i 7% 35 48 84 110 15 4R 73 7 2 Ul
[B] o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o #R& B ImEM T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20

The Group
AEH
2013

RERAEEEY
The Company
RAH
2012 2013 2012

—E-=F —ZE——-F —EBE-—-=% —EE——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx

TR FET TATT

Cash at banks and on hand RITRFHERS 44,284

1,869 37,330 1,077

At 31 December 2013, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$95,000 (2012: HK$88,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21

The Group
rEE
2013

R-ZTE—=F+-A=+—8 K&
BEUARBIARBDFAEZR 2
KR & S EWA95,0008 T (ZF —
Z 4 :88,000% L) - AR T RE R
HEMEHEMER - AW - RIEF
B A 3 2 S BE B 3 {5 {1 A R 4 BEE
EERNEERRE AKEASE
BEREEITINEES ZRITEA
RERBABEMER o

FE A4 BR SR R H At B 3 K

The Company
PN
2012 2013 2012

—Eg—=F —T——-—4F —B-=F —T——F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FET F# T FHEx FH T

Trade payables JE 11 BR 5K — 5 — —
Other payables and accrued — E fth & 7k K

charges FEsH & A 962 4,509 548 4,060

Amount due to JE £ —
a subsidiary op=ENE B/ SE — = 108 —
962 4,514 656 4,060

All trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or repayable on demand.

Included in other payables and accrued charges of the Group
and the Company is an amount due to a related party of
HK$Nil (2012: HK$435,000) which is of the nature of trade
accounts, and is unsecured, interest-free and bears normal
commercial terms of repayment.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT

Fi 7 A B R B L A 8 A R TR B S
R—FRNBEAERBSRALIRE

AN E KRR R H M fE A R & BT
EROEENBEEALTRBET BT
(ZZE——4%:435,00087T) £BZ
SRR VW AERT 2ERHS
—BEEEEIER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

mE BRI
(PAFE T3 7R)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 BARMR H RN
(CONTINUED) (#&)
The amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and JEAT— I B AR 3R IE B EE A -
has no fixed terms of repayment. % B R & TE R R o
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of Rk EHRERE - EBAERRIR
trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BERZEREROTWT:
2013 2012
—EB—-=F —EF——%F
HK$'000 HK$000
FTExT T
More than 3 months =B A E — 5
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM 22 BT EBEB
GOVERNMENT
The Group
xEH
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT T T
Financial assistance from government B fif B4 B 1% B) 915 991
Less: Amount due within 1 year WREBAEEBETNER —F
shown under current liabilities W2 E 2 SR8 (477) (322)
Amount due for settlement after 1 year — & 14 | #i & 2 Z 1A 438 669

In the opinion of the directors, an amount of approximately
HK$477,000 (2012: HK$322,000) will be repayable to ITF
within next twelve months of the current reporting period by
reference to the forecast revenue generated from the specific
products.

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amount of financial
assistance from government approximates its fair value.

EERR RAHEHERT=_EA
A BARBFEHMRESEED
477,000 Jt (= & — = £ : 322,000
BT BETE2EREEMMEL
Z AR AR o

EERA BANMBENZE@EE
HENFEBSE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23

24

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT

(BAETTHIR)

SHORT TERM BORROWING

As at 31 December 2012, a loan with principal amount of
HK$5,000,000, as obtained from an independent third party,
was unsecured, interest-bearing at 3% over the Hong Kong
prime rate per annum plus an arrangement fee. The average
effective interest rate for the year ended 31 December 2012
was approximately 6.3%. The loan and the accrued interest
of HK$1,554,000 as at 31 December 2012 were repayable in
May 2013.

On 1 March 2013, the Company entered into a deed of
assignment with the independent third party and the
controlling shareholder, Prime Precision Holdings Limited,
pursuant to which the loan and the accrued interest as at
that date of HK$6,632,000 were reassigned as loans from a
shareholder. The amount is deemed as drawn down from the
loan facilities letters with the controlling shareholder (see note
24).

LOANS FROM A SHAREHOLDER

On 11 April 2012, the Company entered into a deed of waiver
with the former shareholder in respect of the interest-free loan
and imputed interest with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,164,000, recognising the waiver of that amount in capital
surplus within equity.

On 11 April 2012, 26 June 2012 and 15 November 2012, the
Company entered into loan facilities letters with its controlling
shareholder, Prime Precision Holdings Limited, to the extent of
HK$40,000,000 (the “Facilities”) for the purpose of general
working capital of the Company.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has drawn down
approximately HK$11,528,000 (2012: HK$5,000,000) from the
Facilities. These loans are unsecured, interest-free and had
been fully repaid as at the date of approval of these financial
statements.

23

24

EHEE
R-T——HF+-fF=+—0H K&
Em—E2BYE=ZTBRERLEAE
5,000,000/ 7T 2 B X & EHE A -
FIRBEBHEBRNEINIETE
MZHER - —E——F+=-/F=+
—HIEFEZFHEBRNELAE6.3
E-R=ZFE—=F+=ZA=+—HZ
E R & Z5FF 81,554,000 7T B A
— T -FHAEE-

30 @

RZF—=F=A—H  ARAHEB
32 =75 KRR BR R Prime Precision
Holdings Limited 5] 37 85 38 22 ¥ - &
it 6,632,000 7T 2 & 5 R E %
Hz 258 B E#HE A Z R RIS
ZE o ZEFRIBEAR B R E
R RFT 2 ER B E KR (R
Bt sE24)

BREREX
R=ZZF—=—FMA+—HB  AQqH
ZABRR LR ERE  RABER
REERREENE REHEEAR
1,164,000/8 7T * W £ B AN & #h 2 #E
HAERZERA R -

RZZE——FMA+—H =ZF—=
FRNAZ+ABR=ZZ—=F+—A
+HAB - AAE EE R AR ER Prime
Precision Holdings Limited#] 37 & 5% &t
Bt - £ % ERR&40,000,0007 7T
(T&E]D  URERRRI—REEER

R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—H 'K
ARIE B A REN4911,528,0007 7T
— =& — — £ :5,000,000 JT) ° &%
BERAEEHRF RERRZENH
HEZIAETZAPEBREEE -

—~



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7041 7R)

25 DEFERRED TAX 25 EERHIE
(@) Deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised (a) CHERZELFREEE
— the Group B8E — A5 H
The component of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RErEe M BRARERZ IR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial ERIEEE (BE)HHRE
position and the movements during the year are as NEEHE2H T :
follows:

Fair value
adjustment on
Tax losses intangible assets

BREEZ
HIEEE AP ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FE T
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising iR FER B EE
from: (BE)EER:
Addition through business combination & i@ ¥ & #f 5% &
(note 30), at 31 December 2012 (Fff 5£30) -
and 1 January 2013 RZZE——F+=H
=+—BR
—E—=%—H—H 1,402 (497)
Charged to profit or loss B 2 R (894) —
Credited to profit or loss FTAE &= 1,152 100
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F
+=-—A=+—H 1,660 (397)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * #R & B 3§ 3R &K M &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)
25 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 25 E iE B E (|)
(b) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised (b) MAERZELERIEE
E/8E
At 31 December 2013, the Group has cumulative RZE—=F+=ZA=+—
tax losses of approximately HK$31,196,000 (2012: H ASEBEZABRBEELD
HK$34,148,000). Of which, the Group has recognised 31,196,000 L (=T — =4 :
deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses to 34,148,000 L) « HA » K&
the extent of approximately HK$10,062,000 (2012 EpZEEERERRCHRIAE
HK$8,500,000). The Group has not recognised deferred E F£4910,062,0008 T (= ZF —
tax assets in respect of the remaining tax losses of — % : 8,500,000/ JT) ° A&
approximately HK$21,134,000 (2012: HK$25,648,000) B 5 4921,134,0008 T (=
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against = — —4F :25,648,000/57T) Y
which the remaining tax losses can be utilised will be BRI T4 75 S 48 T SRR AR AE Y
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Other BEE  REAREEBHEA
temporary differences are not material. FRERER  BERNERE
R - ATLAKSHBR T B
i HERMEEZHET TS
* o
The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the following RERZMBEEGERT T
years ending 31 December: HE+T-A=1+T—HLFERE
o
The Group The Company
rEH PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—-= === —E-=F —ZT——
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T4 7T FHER T T
2018 —Z=—N\F 250 = — =
2017 — T+t F 207 140 — —
2016 A S 166 162 — —
2015 —ET—hF 481 469 — —
2014 —=E 464 452 — —
2013 —T—=F — 214 — —
No expiry date 3 A% fE i B Ef 19,566 24,211 8,554 6,856
21,134 25,648 8,554 6,856
92 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFFEEEERAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLANS

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000. Prior to 1 June
2012, the cap of monthly relevant income was HK$20,000.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC are
members of the state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme
organised by the relevant local government authority in the
PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute, based on a
certain percentage of the basic salary of its employees, to the
retirement benefit scheme and has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement benefit scheme represents for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2013 and 2012 in respect of the retirement of its
employees.

26

mE BRI
(PAFE T3 7R)

E R IR NG S

NE B IR EE B A G 55485% 38 #l
MRS ENEN A E S EREK
PlEENrEEENZERER T
—Hg s EAE S B ([BES T
g2l aESE A EHABMY I
ABEREEMRKENRTE - BIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4348 Bt # &K

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT

(BAETTHIR)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution
at the annual general meeting regarding the termination
of the old share option scheme which was adopted on 25
November 2003 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) and adopted
a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”)
whereby the board of directors of the Company may, at its
discretion, grant share options to the eligible participants
including any employees, directors, suppliers, consultants,
agents and advisers or any person in the sole discretion of the
board of directors for the primary purpose to recognise and
motivative their contributions to the Group.

Unless it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of
the Company, the maximum number of shares available for
subscription under the New Share Option Scheme or any other
option scheme adopted by the Company is subject to:

(i) The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted under
the New Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed 30%
of its issued share capital from time to time; and

(ii) The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue at the date of the approval of the New
Share Option Scheme/at the date of passing the relevant
resolution in general meeting.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the options to
each eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares in issue unless it is approved by shareholders
in general meeting of the Company.

Any grant of options under the New Share Option Scheme
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or any of their respective associates must be
approved by independent non-executive directors (excluding
any independent non-executive director who is the proposed
grantee of the options).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5
million, in any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer of the option. The
consideration for a grant of options the Company is HK$1.00.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determined
by the board of directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the
board of directors providing that the price shall not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on the
GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
on the date of the offer, which must be a trading day; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

No share option under the Old Share Option Scheme or the
New Share Option Scheme was granted or outstanding during
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 7R)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28 EXRf#E
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) EEZMDEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REE RS =8 S E DR
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated HA ) B HAOR 45 6 1O 3T BR 3 RO AR
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of SRS BEHREK - AR AER
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the BRI REVNEERZES
Company'’s individual components of equity between the AEEANTE:

beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Share Share Capital Capital Accumulated

The Company capital premium  reserve  surplus losses Total
FAH BA ROEE EXHEE BEXEH ES @t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET TET TET

(note (note (note

28(0)()  28()ii)  28(c)ii)
(Fff &% (Fff &% (Fff &%
28(0()  28(q)(ii)  28(c)iii))

Balance at R=-Z-=-%-8—-8
1 January 2012 Z i 2,000 30,224 1,403 — (37,606) (3,979)

Loss and total comprehensive loss 4 & &5 18 &

for the year SHEBER — — — — (6,065) (6,065)
Capital contribution by a —EBRR

shareholder in the form of ZREBER

interest-free loans AE = = 466 = = 466
Waiver of amount due to a HERN—BRRNE

shareholder = = = 445 = 445
Waiver of loans from a shareholder #A%— & &R 2 &%

(note 24) (B 5F24) = = = 1,164 = 1,164
Balance at R=Z—=%+=A8

31 December 2012 and =t+—-HR=E—=

1 January 2013 F-RA-RAz#&eH 2,000 30,224 1,869 1,609 (43,671) (7,969)

Loss and total comprehensive loss 4 & 518 &

for the year SHEEER — — — — (6,925) (6,925)
Capital contribution by a —ERR

shareholder in the form of ZREER

interest-free loans xE = = 392 = = 392
Issue of shares (note 28(b)(iii)) BITRM

(Pt 28 (b) i) 8,000 50,926 = = = 58,926

Balance at R-E-=£+-A

31 December 2013 =t+t-Hz&H% 10,000 81,150 2,261 1,609 (50,596) 44,424
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

mEMBmRME

(PAFE T3 7R)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 28 BEXRK#E (&)
Share capital (b) RA
Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEREZRTRA
Number of
shares Amount
K& EE -
‘000 HK$000
Tz TA&T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares T AR
At 1 January 2012 R-_BE——&#—F—H
and 31 December 2012 ;rE—ZE——%+—H1
of HK$0.01 each = +t—HEKEE
0.01%8 7T 2 & H 4,000,000 40,000
Share consolidation (note (ii)) izt & BF (4 74 (i) (2,000,000) —
At 31 December 2013 R-—ZT—=%F+—-A
of HK$0.02 each =t+t—HEKREE
0.0278 7T 2 & 17 2,000,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAZ:
Ordinary shares T AR
At 1 January 2012 AR-_ZT——F—H—H
and 31 December 2012 rE—ZT——%+—H1
of HK$0.01 each =t+t—HEKREE
0.0178 7T Z iR 7 200,000 2,000
Share consolidation (note (ii)) f% 2 & B (B 5 (i) (100,000) —
Issue of shares (note (iii) 1T R 19 (BT 5 (i) 400,000 8,000
At 31 December 2013 R-ZT—=%F+—-A
of HK$0.02 each =t+t—HEKREE
0.027% 7T 2 & 17 500,000 10,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BAETTHIR)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(b) Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT

Share consolidation

By an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting on 21 January
2013, every two issued and unissued ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated
into one new ordinary share of HK$0.02 each.
Following the share consolidation which became
effective on 22 January 2013, the Company’s
authorised share capital was HK$40,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.02
each, of which 100,000,000 ordinary shares were
in issue and fully paid.

Issue of shares

Pursuant to an open offer made by the Company
on 27 February 2013, the Company issued
400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each
at a subscription price of HK$0.15 per share on
the basis of four new shares for every existing
share held (the “Open Offer”), resulting in net
proceeds of approximately HK$58,926,000. The
proceeds are intended to be applied to settle the
consideration payable for business combination,
repay the short term borrowing and loans from
a shareholder, and increase the Group’s general
working capital. Details of the Open Offer are
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 1
February 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(o)

Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they fall in
the ordinary course of business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents capital contribution
from shareholders in the form of interest-free
loans. The amounts are estimated by discounting
the nominal value of their non-interesting bearing
loans to the Group at current market interest
rate for similar financial instruments. An early
repayment of interest-free loans represents a
reduction in contribution from shareholders and
reduces capital reserve accordingly.

Capital surplus

Capital surplus comprises the unconditional waiver
of loans and advances by shareholders of the
Company and the Group's former subsidiary.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of a foreign operation.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policy set out in note 2(u).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BAETTHIR)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(d)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT

28 BEARRf##E (H)

Capital management (d) BEXRER
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital AEEEEEANBEZARER
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a & B A R RIS B EAR ET R
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns £ fa fx AR AR BV KT R IR S BB K
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, AELRE  REAEEFE
by pricing products and services commensurately with KEXBEE S - EMBEER
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a & 511 B 3 N A E i s
reasonable cost. BAT KRB ©
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages REERG R EHHERRE
its capital structure to maintain a balance between BRAERBRIRER UERS
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with A% BR 21 ¥R 155 T AT AR FH BE 2 B
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and = 8 B KT B R AT /) & AN AR OR
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes R H 4T B AR R 2 G
adjustments as to the capital structure in light of changes & WEELBERRENZE(H
in economic conditions. BABRBELRE -
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of AEBUAKARERFEY
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, BAL R GHRE  EmHEER
adjusted net debt is defined as total debt (which includes EE oM E  CHBER
financial assistance from government, short term FENERAEBEAE(BRRE
borrowing, loans from a shareholder and consideration BT 2B ERER - &5
payable for business combination), less cash and cash B RERERREBESHH
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components ERRE)RBEeRRESEE
of equity. o KABRERBIEMEER
IHH -
The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio of the Group at NS B P R HA R A 45 3R
the end of the reporting period was as follows: BEFEARLLEMOT :
2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHE T
Debts &7 18,306 36,015
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED (44,284) (1,869)
Adjusted net debt RARFER (25,978) 34,146
Adjusted capital BRABER 55,784 (8,323)
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio RARFEHELL R N/ATEA N/AA i A

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

ARR R EAEA B QR HE R
X 5N S AN B B R AR TE AT R
i o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7041 7R)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amounts of
reserves available for distribution to owners of the
Company was HK$30,554,000 (2012: HK$Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’'s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. Trade receivables are due
with 30 days (2012: 30 days) from the date of billing.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers. At 31 December 2013, the Group had a
certain concentration of credit risk as 23% (2012: 17%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the largest
customer.

Cash and cash equivalents are normally placed at
financial institutions that have sound credit ratings and
the directors consider that the credit risk in liquid funds
is limited.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk

REMBERME

29 KEKREERESHMIA
AT {E(E)

(b)

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short

and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's and the Company’s financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and

the Company can be required to pay:

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s ZEMBEERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PAFE T3 7R)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29 BiBEKREEREMIA
=
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DNFEE)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (by REBE LR (E)
The Group () FKEH
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but |
Carrying undiscounted or on less than
31 December 2013 amount cash flow demand 5 years
EHEE S ) —FREH SR—F
—E-=f+=ZA=+-—8H REE REeRELE FRER BLREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Trade and other payables & A5F B K I L At 8 <F R 962 962 962 —
Financial assistance BT B 4R B
from government 915 915 477 438
Consideration payable EBad
for business combination ERRE 6,052 6,053 6,053 —
Loans from a shareholder —ERERZER 11,339 11,528 11,528 -
19,268 19,458 19,020 438
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than
31 December 2012 amount cash flow demand 5 years
BEARTE —FREH LR —F
—T——f+=-A=+—H REE Ren=gs iR B3k BIRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables & A5F B R I L At 8 5 R 4,514 4,514 4,514 —
Financial assistance from B B R B |
government 991 991 322 669 l
Consideration payable for business 7% & # 2
combination ERRE 23,830 24,000 15,000 9,000 l
Loans from a shareholder —HBRRZER 4,640 5,000 — 5,000
Short term borrowing HEEE 6,554 6,700 6,700 =
40,529 41,205 26,536 14,669
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 7R)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29 BRRAREEREMIA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DN P EGE)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RENE LR (&)

(ii) The Company (i) A4 F]

Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than
31 December 2013 amount cash flow demand 5 years
EHEE S8 —FREH SR—F
—E-=5+-A=+-8 REE REeRELE FRER BLREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Trade and other payables & A5F B R I L At 8 < R 656 656 656 -
Loans from a shareholder —EZREZER 11,339 11,528 11,528 -
11,995 12,184 12,184 —
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than
31 December 2012 amount cash flow demand 5 years
BRIARATE —FREH SR —F
—T——Ft+ZA=+—H RHE RenERE kiR Bk BLRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables FEAS AR 3R R £ b BT 3R 4,060 4,060 4,060 —
Loans from a shareholder —EREZER 4,640 5,000 = 5,000
Short term borrowing HEEE 6,554 6,700 6,700 —
15,254 15,760 10,760 5,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7041 7R)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29 MKEKREEREMIA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DN EGE)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (€ FZE= b

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from AEBEBZHNERBREERER
short term borrowing. Borrowing issued at variable HEE - ZEEESASEA
rates exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate ARBREmANERR - BIEE
risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by EREAREEZAMEESHI 0
management is set out below. T

The following table details the interest rate profile of the TR AR R B A SRR
Group'’s interest bearing borrowings at the end of the SEFEEBEZMNEAS o

reporting period.

The Group and the Company

KEEREAT
2013 2012
—E—= —_F——
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BEBRAE B R A =
% FTHERT % FAT
Variable rate borrowing % 8 & &
Short term borrowing EHEE N/ATE A — 6.3 5,000

The interest rate and terms of repayment of the Group's
and the Company’'s interest-bearing borrowing are
disclosed in note 23.

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variable held constant, would have
no impact on the Group’s profit for the year and
accumulated losses (2012: increase/decrease the Group's
loss for the year and accumulated losses by HK$42,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates occurred at
the end of reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2012.

AEERARRZFABREBEZ
) 2R R 58 5RCER R B 523 B

==
% o

i

RZZT—=F+=-A=+—8 "
WA= _EF REE1001EE 2 -
MEMESREFTE AT
HAEEFREH & RFTEE
ERERFE(CE——F K
SEZ2FAEBERRFTEEE
B0,/ E 442,000 7T)

ESEES N BE RN RS
HARS 45 SRS 2R R R Fh I &
HEAGEZEEAZAERR
%M & E ok F sk T FE1001E
EENEBEHEE T —EF
EHEEREE2EERNE
BE)FTETE - HMBIE=F
—ZEZEEEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ﬁéﬂjﬁi&% Fﬁa
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29 MHEBEERERITA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DN P EGE)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (d) B
The Group's business activities and its assets and AEBEBEHREEERS
liabilities were denominated in HK$ and RMB. The BABTRARKSE - B2
management considers the Group is not exposed to [ 3R % 7= & B £ [ %9 & A 41
significant foreign currency risk as most sales, income, EEkE BARKDIHEE - K
purchases and expenses are denominated in the A BERRAZHAE G2
functional currency of the operations to which they B2 E%stE - A5EE
relate. The Group currently does not have a foreign A N B SN EE SR B3R o AT
currency hedging policy. However, the management EREBERIMNERR R IERE
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider FERZSREEHRERINER
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the % o
need arise.
(e) Categories of financial instruments () ERMIEAEEHA
The Group The Company
rEH b N
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=F T ZB-Z=F ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAE T FET FAT

Financial assets SREE
Loan and receivables B & FE W R IE
(including cash and (BREREE KR
cash equivalents) ©EBEY) 49,262 6,484 56,359 6,227

Financial liabilities cHMERE

Financial liabilities HEHEKATE
measured at amortised ZemBeE
cost 13,216 16,699 11,995 15,254

Consideration payable for 27 & 0f 2 &
business combination A 6,052 23,830 — —
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

s ZEMBEERME
(PAFE T3 7R)

BRREEREMIA
DNFEE)

(f) Fair value measurement  2FE
(i) Financial liabilities measured at fair value () HAFEIAEZLH
BE

Consideration payable for business combination
includes contingent consideration which is
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period on a recurring basis. The fair value
measurements of the contingent consideration
is categorised as Level 3, whose fair value is
measured using significant unobservable input, as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.

The following table provides information about
Level 3 fair value measurements:

Fair value as at 31

REB S G2 BARE
BRIAAKRE HTRE
BERRBRELEEREE
RBERAFEFTE - XA
REZAFEFEED
BRF=ZM ERT¥E
ERERTABRREGA
HEFE TERER
81 7% i 5 2E Bl B135% 2
FEE -

TREKEBE=AL
FEHEZAH:

December
R+=A=+t—-H Significant Relationship of
2 FE Valuation unobservable unobservable inputs
Financial liabilities 2013 2012 techniques inputs to fair value
EXTAHEERA FTUBEBARER
SHAHE —E-=F -4 hEFE g AFEZER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contingent consideration 6,052 23,830 Discounted Discount rate of The higher the discount

in business combination cash flow 0.10% (2012:
0.10%) and

probability-

adjusted revenue

and profits

XAz ARARE FRBALRE MEK0.10%

—_ET——F:

0.10%) & A B¢ 7

B a8 Kok A

rate, the lower
the fair value. The
lower the amount of
revenue and profits,
the lower the fair
value
WRERSE  AF
EAIRIE - s &
A EERESE - A
1 FEIFRIEK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29 IEREEREMITA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL AFEE(E)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) f) 2FEE)
(i)  Financial liabilities measured at fair value () BAFEHTEZZLH
(Continued) EE(#E)
The movement during the year in the balance FAN ZE=MAFE
of this Level 3 fair value measurements are as ATEAEKREFHNT
follows:
2013 2012
—E-—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F& T
At 1 January n—A—H 23,830 =
Total gain in profit or loss RER W SE5 (2,778) —
Addition NE — 23,830
Settlement ®wE (15,000) —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 6,052 23,830
(i) Financial assets/liabilities carried at other (i) BRAFEUIMEEE
than fair value ZCEBEE BE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the NE B RARRAE R KA
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or HEHKAINEZ 2R
amortised cost are not materially different from TEMEEERELRZ
their fair values as at 31 December 2013 and T—=FR T ——F+
2012. ZTA=+—H®MAFE
MEEAZE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30 BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 31 December 2012, the Group acquired the entire
equity interest in KanHan and its subsidiary (together
“KanHan Group”) from independent third parties at a
nominal consideration of HK$28,000,000. KanHan Group
was principally engaged in the provision of communications
software platform. Pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement dated 26 June 2012 in respect of the acquisition
(the “S&P Agreement”), the consideration would be satisfied
in the following manner:

(i) as to HK$4,000,000 in cash or by cheque within 5
business days upon execution of the S&P Agreement;

(i) as to HK$15,000,000 (1) in cash or by cheque in
the event that the resumption of trading of the
Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “Resumption”) has been effected or (2) by the
issuance of the first interest-free promissory notes (“1st
Promissory Notes”) in the event that the Resumption has
not been effected and shall be repayable in one lump
sum on the date falling two years from the date of issue
of the 1st Promissory Notes, upon the completion of
acquisition; and

(iii) as to HK$9,000,000 (1) in cash or by cheque in the
event that the Resumption has been effected or (2)
by the issuance of the second interest-free promissory
note (“2nd Promissory Note”) in the event that the
Resumption has not been effected, within 7 business
days after the issuance of the 2013 audited accounts of
KanHan Group and shall be repayable in one lump sum
on the date falling two years from the date of issue of
the 2nd Promissory Note.

30

mE BRI
(PAFE T3 7R)

x%a 6t
R-T——&F+-fA=+—H &&
EmBLE=—rKREFZERENE
RRGTEIEEZEE]) M2 IBAE -
% 2 8 /528,000,000/8 7T - B &
SEMNFEEKARERAETT
B - BER-ZE—=-FA=Z+~
BB YWEERE((EE®H
Z) ARRBETHAA AR
f&:

() 4,000,000 JT 8 1 %5 7
EEAEEEARIN
S EXT

ﬂ
il
il

\
/
\
L

i
k>

)

(i) 15,000,000/8 LB A 55 =
A ()l AR E) R D TR AE
BMRFAIEREE (B4
Mo ABEESRTEXLARQ)
i B e A ER BB BR
TERKERBEITE—HRBEE
NEE(E—HEANZE]DE
- BERE—MENEEZ
BOHHRBRTMEEA—FH
St R

(i) 9,000,000 T # LA T 5 5 =
A MHEBRER  URE
R ELN Q) ME R EE
R AREBEEEEZ=F—
“FEEZREEHECEE
¥R BRABTE_MHEE
ANEE(E _HANEE])
#t BBERE_HANERE
ZEITHBBMEEE £
B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 30 (%4568

110

The consideration is subject to adjustment based on the
audited consolidated profit before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA") of KanHan Group of not less than
HK$5,500,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012 and not
less than HK$8,500,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013
(the "Guaranteed Amount”). The consideration payable shall
be reduced by an amount equal to the shortfall.

The first payment of HK$4,000,000 was settled in cash on
3 July 2012. The 1st Promissory Notes were issued on 31
December 2012 and redeemed by paying HK$15,000,000 in
cash on 28 February 2013.

On 31 December 2012, based on the assessment of the
directors of the Company, the possibility of shortfall in EBITDA
against the Guaranteed Amount is remote, and consequently
the fair value of guarantee asset is HK$Nil.

The audited EBITDA of KanHan Group for the year ended
31 December 2012 and 2013, which is approximately
HK$5,746,000 and HK$5,553,000. Accordingly, the
consideration payable shall be reduced by the shortfall
amount of approximately HK$2,947,000 in EBITDA against the
Guaranteed Amount for the year ended 31 December 2013.
Consequently, a fair value gain on consideration payable for
business combination of HK$2,778,000 is recognised in profit
or loss according to the accounting policy set out in note 2(d).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7041 7R)

30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 30 ¥¥56t(8E)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of KanHan REEEE BEUENEESEEER
Group acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows: BAMEERBEATFEMET
HK$000
T
Property, plant and equipment Y- BRERZE 232 B
Intangible assets EREE 4,778
Deferred tax assets FEBIAEE 1,402
Inventories 78 69
Trade and other receivables JE Ui BR R R H At FE Ui 3R 4,613
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEZEED 197
Trade and other payables JE A1 BR R I LA J A5 3R (453)
Financial assistance from government BT 81 75 & B (991)
Deferred income T A (1,756)
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBBE (497)

Fair value of net identifiable assets BERENAHNFEELATFE

acquired 7,594
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEEE ZEE 20,236
Total consideration BB 27,830
Total consideration, satisfied by: BREGRTIARXZMN:
Cash & 4,000
Fair value of 1st Promissory Notes F—ENEEZATE 14,841
Fair value of consideration payable ERNReKEZAFE

in cash 8,989

27,830 b

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: 4§ 2 & 2 38 & it () F 58 -

i

Consideration paid in cash BENEENRE (4,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BERENReRREEEY 197

(3,803)
The goodwill is attributable to the synergies of the acquired HEDEHAEBRRKEE LR
business expected to arise after the Group’s acquisition of & - WU IE XS/ 17 R R & &= A& o
KanHan Group. These benefits are not recognised separately ZENR W AEEFESRER @ R
from goodwill because they do not meet the recognition HEEIW TSR HAETEED
criteria for identifiable intangible assets. TR LE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #4R& Bt % $R&% M=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 7R)

30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 30 (%4568

112

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,918,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2012 have been excluded from
the consideration transferred and have been recognised as
"administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

KanHan Group did not contribute any turnover or profit to the
Group for the year as the acquisition was completed on 31
December 2012.

Had this business combination taken place on 1 January 2012,
the directors of the Company estimate that the consolidated
turnover and the consolidated net profit for the year ended
31 December 2012 would have been HK$11,954,000 and
HK$304,000 respectively. This pro-forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and result of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2012.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED « RFEHFEHEEEER AT

BB BELZHERTERR
BELIEE -

REBEE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—H1t
F [Z /) A8 B8 Uk & BK AN &1,918,00078
TAERTERNE LEERE
PEKRSRERABMTERAX] -

HERAKER—ZE——F+=-A=+—
H5EK © BEEBRAFE L E LR
EEEREMEEE I = MER °

Mt ¥EaHR_E——F—HF—H
BT ARAERHFEHES—
—E+ A=+ HIEEEGLE

R K 4R A s A FEE D B A11,954,000
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31

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable

31

(PAFE T3 7R)

KREHFERIE
RZZF—=F+=—A=+—8 ' RE
TNA MO & LEHE RN Z RERIE

as follows: A FRIBRENT
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——%F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Within 1 year —FR 486 166
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 318 9
804 175

The Group is the lessee in respect of its office premises held
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial period
of two years, with an option to renew the leases when all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

AEEARBREEERBZHA
EMEZAERAN - ERAEEZNH
FHAMT HEBENEAME
GRTEEHRE - -HELAERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ %R & Bt % $R 3% M &%
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 32 EXBABALTRERER
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(@) Key management personnel remuneration (@) TEEE ABEFHH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBEEERABTMEE
Group, including amounts paid to the directors of the MENAEERECENARRE
Company as disclosed in note 11 and certain of the FERIBERW 12 T2 B4
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 12, is as ETEEFHMES 2FIE @ &
follows: BT :
2013 2012
—E-=F T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Short-term employee benefits HHEEEA 2,190 859
Post-employment benefits BB 12 18 A 51 14
2,241 873
(b) Transactions with other related parties (b) BEEHMEBEEALRS
2013 2012
—Z2—= —T——F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET T T

Printing charges to a related company* [A] 8 & 2 7] 32 1+ 2 )

il 78 < # 284 621
Management fee to MEAEAR N 2B
a related company* BE~ 160 =
Sales of property, plant and 1% B H (B [7) B8 2 A A
equipment at carrying amount HEWE  BWER
to a related company* XA 27 —
5 Lau Man Tak is the director of the related company. & BIXBEERBERRAZE

-

3 Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence is the sole director of the related * REREERBERR 2K
company. —EFo
(c) Balances with related parties are disclosed in the () HEEEATEBEZEBEE
statements of financial position and in notes 19, 21 and RIS AR R R M #E19 ~ 21K
24. 24 o
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33

34

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed below and elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group does not have other significant
events after the end of the reporting period.

On 14 January 2014, KanHan has entered into a facility letter
with a financial institution for a revolving loan facility to the
extent of HK$12,000,000 (the “Bank Facility”). The Bank
Facility is secured by personal guarantees and mortgaged
properties owned by independent third parties. Up to the date
of approval of these financial statements, KanHan has not
utilised the Bank Facility.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those
policies and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in
conditions and assumptions are factors to be considered when
reviewing the consolidated financial statements. The principal
accounting policies are set forth in note 2. The Group believes
the following critical accounting policies involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements.

33

34

mE BRI
(PAFE T3 7R)

BEMREE

BT X REA M BE R TS
BB SN o AN SR 3 M R o A
BREFEHMBBEAFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BAETTHIR)

34 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

116 AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED e

Impairment loss on intangible assets

The carrying amounts of intangible assets that are not
yet available for use are reviewed annually in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined
below the carrying amounts. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and the value in use. In
determining the value in use, the expected cash flows
generated by the intangible assets are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to the level of future software revenue and
the amount of service costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of software revenue and
the amount of service costs, and discount rate.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate present value. Details of the impairment loss
calculation are set out in note 16.

RETEREEERAF

REMBERME

34 Bl TR A E (&)

(a)

(b)

BRILEERERRE

MARAGERZ B EEZE
EEEEFRT - AT EATR
BeEREBELREENER
f - EHE El T BERE -
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AU Bl 2R 28 X PR R K
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EREERN BHREVEEE
EZHeREDTRERLR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e %348 B # R & M 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

34 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

()

(d)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses.
As these deferred tax assets can only be recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the unused tax
benefits can be utilised, management’s judgement is
required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’s assessment is constantly received
and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax assets to be recovered. Details of the
nature and carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are
disclosed in note 25.

Impairment loss on trade and other
receivables

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables is
assessed and provided based on management’s regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the
management when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual customer. Any
increase or decrease in the impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debt would affect the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income in future years.

(PAFE T3 7R)

34 &5t E R H E (&)

()

(d)

BEBE R E

BEIER IR E EL A S A KB
BIEERR - HNELEHEE
EEEEARRRBGEH - A
ERABARBERBMOBIT
ER - BEEEARFERER
750 g A B 2 1 B 0 4 I -
fie R SR ER A5 48 1) B < IR AE B A
BEATRE  BIEREEH
HEITRE - WHERFEIMNELER
HEE - ARABRTEHREEEN
M K AR EE R B 253

=
B
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JFE Uit B 75 % L At FE WK 2 R R
B8R TR E IR E E HE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ #R& Bt % &Kz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (JA7 7T 7R)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 35 B2-E-=F+=-H=+1
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS —ALEFEEEMERER
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE R 2BET - HEA KRR
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 BeBuERE
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial BEEZEREUBHRREZBN
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, ERSHMASEB/MBZEEBE
new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective EARZRE BEREEZZT—=
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and which have not FH+ZA=T—HIEFEHMRER -
been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. These R G BRI 52 F AR A B TS 3k
include the following which may be relevant to the Group: We ANAAEEANERESBAZ

ZAR

Effective for

accounting
periods beginning
on or after
EUTHEHFZE
MazastHBEN
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and

HKFRS 7, Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and transition disclosures Note
BEMBRELENFEIRREBIHBEIHRELRE7H 2 ER] -

[& 78 B 7% 3 &5 2 B 85957 58 Il 4 20 B B K% 38 1 #8 B Bt 52
Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011), Investment entities 1 January 2014
BEMBRELENFI05 BAEV B REEDFE125 RES G ERIE275%

—E-)ZBE [ REER —E-MHE—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 32,

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2014
BB G ERFENR2ER]  [HiEeREERSRERE] —E-MHE—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 36,

Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets 1 January 2014
BB ERFEICHK 2IEF]  [ELFEE <A W E & 2% 5 —E-HMHE—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 39,

Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting 1 January 2014
BB EREIR 2B  [TTETRAEZABERRE P52 EE] —E-HMHE—A—H
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21, Levies 1 January 2014
EEERMBRERRBEESR) — REF215% - [#FH] —ET-mHE—A—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 cycle 1 July 2014
BANBHREEN TS ZTFE T —_FRONFERE —E-mE+LHA—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 cycle 1 July 2014
BEANBREEN T ——FE2_ T =FEPANFEIE —T-—mMELR—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments Note
BEMBRELNFENE  [€f T A B 5
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35

36

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ®

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(CONTINUED)

Note: Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

The directors have confirmed in writing that the Group is in the
process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the separate presentation of the discontinued
operation, certain comparative figures, including figures in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of cash flows, and their related notes, have been re-
presented to conform to changes in disclosures in the current
year.

As a result of the open offer which were completed during
the year, the earnings/loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2012 has been restated.
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Five-Years Financial Summary

EFHBERE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—B—=F —E——F ZE——F =ZZT-TF ZTITNAF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER F& T F#& T F& T F#& T
RESULTS E
Turnover from continuing and REREKRIELEEE
discontinued operations B2 ek 14,278 97 7,019 38,892 36,941
Profit/(loss) before R BT 153 B4 R 2 AT
income tax expense s A (E518) 4,505 (5,845) (2,987) 694 12,216
Income tax credit/(expense) FERiE e (FX) 358 = (115) (575) (346)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF (B8 4,863 (5,845) (3,102) 119 11,870
Attributable to: ATTA L FE(S :
Owners of the Company ARAREEB A 4,863 (5,845) (3,102) 119 11,870
Non-controlling interests FEVE MR HE = — — — — —
4,863 (5,845) (3,102) 19 11,870
Restated Restated Restated Restated
= =7 = =]
Earnings/(loss) per share gRERN(&EE)
Basis (HK cents) F AR (B Al 1.05 (2.30) (1.22) 0.05 4.67
Diluted (HK cents) B8 (Bl N/AFREAR NATEAB NATEA NATEA NATEA
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Total assets BEMRE 77,523 34,459 5,517 12,014 11,405
Total liabilities afEwsE (21,739) (42,782) (10,070) (13,465) (11,580)
55,784 (8,323) (4,553) (1,451) (175)
Total equity attributable to owners AR FEA A
of the Company JFE ki == 4258 55,784 (8,323) (4,553) (1,451) (175)
Non-controlling interests e Bk fE 2 — — — — —
55,784 (8,323) (4,553) (1,451) (175)
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